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October 25, 2018

To the Board of Trustees &

The Constitutions of the District
South Suburban College
Community School District No. 510
South Holland, Illinois 60473

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of South Suburban
College, Community School District No. 510, South Holland, Illinois for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 is hereby submitted.

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures,
rests with the College. We believe the data, as presented, is accurate in
all material respects and that it is presented in a manner designed to
fairly set forth the financial position and results of the operations of the
College as measured by the financial activity of its various funds; and
that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain maximum
understanding of the financial affairs of the College have been included.

The CAFRis presented in four sections: introductory, financial, statistical
and special reports. The introductory section includes this transmittal
letter, the College's organizational chart and a list of principal officials.
The financial section includes the basic financial statements as well as the
auditor's report on the basic financial statements. The statistical section
includes selected unaudited financial and demographic information,
generally, presented on a multi-year basis. The special reports section
contains grant and enrollment information as required by the Illinois
Community College Board (ICCB) and the related auditor's reports.

The College is required to undergo an annual single audit in accordance
with provisions of the Single Audit Act of 1984, the Single Audit
amendments of 1996 and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-133, Audits of State and Local Governments. Information related
to this single audit is included in a separate single audit report, which is
available for review at South Suburban College, 15800 South State Street,
South Holland, Illinois 60473.

This report includes all funds and account groups of South Suburban
College.
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BACKGROUND INFORMATION

South Suburban College, a public two-year college, was founded in 1927 as Thornton
Junior College, servicing 20 communities in the south suburban region of Chicago,
lllinois. On September 19, 1927, Thornton Junior College, under the jurisdiction of the
Board of Education of Cook County High School District 205, began classes for forty-
seven students with a faculty of fifteen.

Although Thornton Junior College was the fifth junior college established in Illinois, there
was at the time no specific legal sanction for such an institution. In 1931 enabling
legislation was enacted in order to establish the legality of the junior college in the public
school system. In 1937, additional legislation validated existing junior colleges outside
of Chicago and permitted the founding of others. With passage of the Illinois Public
Community College Act in 1965, the College District 510 was established and was
enlarged to include high school districts 205, 215, and 228 (Thornton, Thornton Fractional,
and Bremen.) District 510 is comprised of twenty communities in the south suburban
area of Chicago.

In 1969, the name of the institution was changed to Thornton Community College, partly
as an attempt to reflect more accurately its mission as a comprehensive community
college and to dispel the notion that the College was merely an extension of the local high
schools. With plans to construct a permanent campus facility, the College moved in 1971
to an interim campus in South Holland, Illinois, and the first phase of the main campus
facility was completed in 1972. By 1976, with the exception of a few classes held at local
high schools, Thornton Community College was offering all of its programs and courses
at its new, 437,596 square-foot campus facility.

In June of 1988, the Board of Trustees unanimously voted to change the name of the
institution to South Suburban College. This action was partly the result of the Trustees’
decision that since the College serves more than just Thornton Township (Bremen and
parts of Bloom and Calumet Townships as well), a more “generic” name for the College
should be used; thus, the name South Suburban College of Cook County was chosen. For
day-to-day purposes, the shortened name South Suburban College is used.

In 1992, the College opened the University and College Center in Oak Forest, Illinois, in
an effort to serve the western portion of the district and to provide opportunities for
district residents to complete a four-year degree.

MISSION & GOALS

The mission of South Suburban College is to Serve our Students and the Community
through lifelong learning.
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SSC is dedicated to:

Goals:

1.

@

High quality education, training, and services for all individuals who have the
ability to benefit from our programs which are shaped by multiple societal and
economic trends. The delivery of these courses and programs will utilize
current technology and provide students with access to vital technology
experience.

Programs that are accessible and affordable provided to a diverse community
of learners. These courses and programs will also provide students with the
technology skills that a competitive workforce requires.

Training delivered in collaboration with local businesses.

A diverse community of staff, faculty, and students that create an environment
and resources for learning.

Up-to-date facilities and technology, based upon the needs of the
constituencies we serve, which help prepare students for transfer to
baccalaureate programs or placement directly into the job market.

Provide credit courses and associate degree programs for academically
prepared student body to assist them in preparing for effective transfer to a
four-year college or university. The College will be accountable for the quality
of academic programs and utilization of assessment data for effective
programming and instructional changes.

Provide high quality, accessible, and affordable credit courses and associate
degree and certificate programs for academically prepared students to assist
them in preparing for occupations that require career education beyond the
high school level.

Provide developmental instruction in reading, writing, mathematics, adult
basic education, adult secondary education, and English as a Second Language
skills to students requiring such in order to succeed in other college programs
or to complete a high school equivalency or General Education Development
(GED) Program, and to expand adult education to include bridging to a college
credit program or immediate employment.

Support the diversity of our student population who complete training and
educational programs by providing academic advising, learning resources,
and supportive services, such as specialized learning assistance and English as
a Second Language instruction for students with a wide range of academic
needs.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

Partner with local businesses and industry to sustain strong economic growth
and to maintain a competitive workforce. The College will provide universal
technical skills training to qualify community residents for employment, and
will assist businesses in workforce development.

Complement classroom instruction with student opportunities through
workplace internships, cooperative education and other work-based learning
approaches which will help in employability and to prepare for certification
exams.

Offer activities, services, and programs that enhance student life and enrich the
educational experience of the student to increase knowledge of societal and
civic responsibilities in a complex society. Design and implement programs
that develop student leadership, ethical decision-making, and international
cultural understanding,.

Collaborate with area elementary and secondary school districts to develop
and provide educational services to their students and staff.

Provide high quality educational programs by utilizing quality measures such
as input from advisory committees, assessment of student learning outcomes,
and recommendations from our accrediting agencies.

Maintain fiscal responsibility by continually improving productivity, cost
effectiveness, and accountability.

Demonstrate social justice and inclusion by embracing educational and
cultural opportunities that generate support for historically marginalized
groups, including, but not limited to: physically challenged, underprivileged,
ethnic minorities, and women.

Create a climate where diversity of beliefs, intellectual abilities, style, ethnic
background, individual needs, and culture is to be encouraged, respected,
developed, shared and celebrated. Demonstrate proper representation of these
concepts.

Design and implement programs that develop student leadership, ethical
decision-making, and international cultural understanding. Incorporate
proper ethical decision making ideas into the college community by opening
the lines of communication with student, faculty, and staff on the idea of ethics
in the college setting.

iv



ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The College is located approximately 25 miles south of downtown Chicago, Illinois and
services an area of 94 square miles. The population served is estimated to be 377,321 and
is encompassed in twenty Chicago suburbs: Blue Island, Burnham, Calumet City,
Country Club Hills, Dixmoor, Dolton, East Hazel Crest, Harvey, Hazel Crest, Lansing,
Lynwood, Markham, Midlothian, Oak Forest, Phoenix, Posen, Riverdale, South Holland,
Thornton and Tinley Park. The communities are primarily residential and can be
characterized as mature and stable.

The tax base of the College is estimated to be diversified: 54% residential, 25% industrial,
19% commercial and 2% railroad. It is projected that this proration of property values
will continue into the foreseeable future. The total tax base has decreased sizably to
$2,997,805,050 in Tax Levy Year 2017 from just four years ago. Since the College is located
in Cook County, it is limited by the Property Tax Extension Limitation Law (PTELL),
which is designed to limit the increase in property tax extensions.

The general state of the local economy is slightly below average compared to the economy
for northern Illinois. No major changes in the local economy are forecasted into the
future. The average unemployment rate for 2017 in the district is 8.5%, compared to 5.7 %
for Cook County, 5.4% for the State of Illinois, and 4.4% for the nation.

MAJOR STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

Financial Aid: “A Helping Hand”

The South Suburban College Financial Aid Office (SSCFAO) processed over 9,000
applications for financial aid during fiscal year 2018. The SSCFAO was responsible for
awarding 2,523 students with Pell Grants totaling $7,832,993. In addition, the FA office
awarded 863 students with Monetary Award Program grants from the State of Illinois
equaling $1,090,392. The SSCFAO also helped over 200 veterans with federal and state
veteran’s assistance totaling over $200,000.

South Suburban College Foundation

The mission of the South Suburban College Foundation (SSCF) is to support the
educational purposes and objectives of the College by providing assistance in the
promotion of SSC’s services and facilities. The SSCF seeks funding to strengthen College
programs with a primary focus on student scholarships. Established in 1973, the
Foundation is solely governed by a Board of Directors composed of 25 of the region’s
business, civic and community leaders. The SSCF is a philanthropic, not-for-profit
organization chartered in the State of Illinois and is a 501(c)(3) tax exempt organization
(EIN: 237191738). It works cooperatively with individuals and organizations in
developing a plan to fit the needs of the donors.



The SSCF awarded over $130,000 in total awards in fiscal year ended 2018, and its
endowment as of July 31, 2018 was $ 1,104,206. Additionally, the Foundation held a 90t
Anniversary Capital Campaign to assist with the development of SSC Circle—a much
needed, state-of-the-art student assistance facility. The SSCF will contribute $90,000 upon
completion of this project in the fall.

Scholarship Opportunities for HSE Graduates

In addition to the many Federal and State Financial Aid opportunities available, the South
Suburban College Foundation (SSCF) offers numerous scholarships to qualified
applicants that can be used for tuition and fees, books and supplies. Some of these
scholarships are awarded specifically through the Adult Education Department. The
Regson Scholarship is a $1,000 award for a student enrolled in a 12-15 hour program
leading to a Basic certificate; the Gloria J. Taylor Adult Education Scholarship is a $1,600
award given to a GED graduate who earns between 600 and 659 points on his/her GED
Examination; the Jane Ellen Stocker Scholarship which assists with books and fees for
transitioning Adult Education students.

An evaluation of all tuition waivers was completed and it was decided to merge many of
our waivers that had such a long list of eligibility requirements into one “Free Class
Waiver”. This new waiver is addressing the need of our 18-24 age group of students as
well as Lake County Indiana students.

As a reciprocal scholarship, the Board of Trustees offers scholarships to all South
Suburban College HSE graduates scoring 165 or above on each HSE exam. This is a two-
year, tuition-free scholarship for up to 15 credit hours each semester. Lastly, all graduates
of the Adult Education programs are invited to participate in a cap and gown graduation
ceremony where they will be presented with a certificate in an SSC diploma jacket.

48th HSE Commencement Held

The Adult Education Department celebrated its 48th graduating class on May 18, 2018.
During these 48 years, SSC has graduated more than 5,000 students, including 92 for 2018.
Many HSE graduates have registered and graduated from SSC’s various certificate
and/or degree programs. Out of the 47 students that graduated in 2018 25% have already
enrolled in one of SSC’s college credit programs. The College continues to implement and
develop programs to successfully transition HSE graduates into College credit programs.

Program Accessibility

South Suburban College’s Adult Education Department continues to offer a wide range
of opportunities for adults to build basic skills required for success. Adult Education
courses (Adult Basic Education, Adult Secondary Education, High School Equivalency,
and English Language Acquisition) are offered in full and part time increments at various
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times and locations. Therefore, classes are convenient for students with families and busy
schedules. The program remains dedicated to providing access to all students within the
district. Classes are offered in South Holland, Riverdale, Harvey, and Oak Forest.

Adult Education Community Opportunities

Our students continue to participate in activities involving Legislative Awareness Day in
Springfield; this was made possible by a grant secured by our Transitions Coach through
the IACEA association. This allowed for transportation to Springfield, where the students
were able to participate in the planned rally; met with and had photo sessions with the
local representatives of the area; toured the Capital and most importantly observed a
voting session of the legislative body. All of the SSC Adult Education students who
participated in the event had never previously visited Springfield. It was a learning
venture for all of them. Adult Education students became politically active this past year
and wrote over 500 letters to our local and federal senators and congressmen. Rep. Robin
Kelly, Sen. Tammy Duckworth, and Sen. Dick Durban all wrote our students back
showing their support for Adult Education.

Additionally, we support the Business & Career Institute Women’s Conference by
offering students the opportunity to participate in this yearly activity. The women who
participate may not have otherwise been able to interface on a professional level with
other women or to attend an activity such as a conference. We look upon this event as
an educational and culturally enriching activity for them.

Through the efforts of our Transitions Coach, students were transported to Moraine
Valley Community College, as well as to the joint Thornton Township/SSC Job Fair.
Students brought their newly created resumes and several were successful with securing
employment. The Transitions Coach also independently goes to job fairs and hiring
events to obtain employment information for the students enrolled in the program.

Secretary of State’s Adult Volunteer Literacy Grant

The College has continued to receive the very important Secretary of State Adult
Volunteer Literacy Grant. This grant is a renewable grant to provide funding to support
a team of volunteers who are prepared to tutor members of the community and students
who score below an 8.9 grade level on the Test of Adult Basic Education (TABE). The
grant helps to pay for a portion of the salary of the coordinator and to purchase textbooks
and supplies necessary to manage this important effort to improve literacy. Some
members of our local towns and villages are unable to read, write, or perform simple
mathematical functions. Without this knowledge they are not able to complete basic
forms necessary for additional funds, or to secure an interview for a job. Oftentimes these
individuals lack the necessary self-esteem to seek success at any level. We are proud to
play an important part in this very worthwhile venture in the community. We have
voluntarily offered the Family Reading Night as an additional activity for our tutors and
community members and once again the event was underwritten by the SSC Foundation.
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Last year for Family Reading Night we were able to make short stories come to life with
a live performance done by a local puppet master Eric Stiles! There was an activity table
for the children to color their very own story books along with face painting fun! Several
local authors come out to speak including Trustee Joe Whittington, and Yusuf Ali-ElL
Prizes were given away along with free children’s books donated from the school library.

South Suburban College Foundation Second Chance Scholarship

Since 2011, the Adult Education Department appealed to the SSC Foundation for funding
to be able to provide the fee for SSC Adult Education students to be able to take the GED
exams. In light of the economic conditions in District #510, this “Second Chance
Scholarship” helps those who want to be able to be successful in earning a High School
Equivalency. Of the 92 graduates in 2018, 36 took advantage for the Second Chance
Scholarship.

SouthWorks Maker Lab

The SouthWorks Maker Lab at South Suburban College continues to provide students
with access to state-of-the-art technology for completion of projects in a variety of applied
engineering programs. In addition, several other disciplines have begun to investigate
how the Maker Lab can be incorporated into their curriculum. The goal of the lab is to
provide not only our students, but also local entrepreneurs, community members and
inventors access to high quality tools they may not otherwise have available.
SouthWorks Maker Lab continues to collaborate with other regional Maker Labs and
STEM initiatives while hosting the 2rd annual SouthWorks Engineering & Robotics
Olympics in 2018 with 21 regional schools participating.

Developmental Math Curriculum

As year three begins, students continue to succeed in the newly redesign developmental
math curriculum. A larger number of students are successfully completing one or two
lower-level developmental education math courses in a single semester. This coupled
with higher placement test scores is reducing the time needed to reach the gateway math
courses needed for their programs.

Dual Credit

Academic Services continuously offer ways to link the students from the college’s nine
feeder high schools to Career and Technical Education (CTE) programs offered by SSC.
This is done by inviting designated liaisons from the high schools to visit the campus and
learn more about specific career programs. This past year dual credit high school students
in the Child Development Program attended workshops where appropriate sessions
emphasized the content of the Teacher Aide/Child Development career program offered
at SSC. Students from three feeder high schools were involved in hands-on activities in
Graphic Design. In addition, over 100 high school students participated in the annual
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SSC Video Competition which showcases the students’ skills in various categories and
culminates in a formal presentation of winners. Endeavors such as these provide the
high schools students with information about SSC’s certificates and degrees.

Art & Design

The Art & Design department features exhibitions, visiting artist lectures, and classes that
serve our community, native student population and high school students. All of our
college-level art classes are co-listed with the continuing education sections to reach our
community of adult learners and non-degree seeking students who wish to pursue their
artistic goals. Our galleries bring in many community connections and the Regional High
School Art Exhibition bring over 300 high school students and instructors yearly onto our
campus culminating in a festival day. The annual high school art festival features a
visiting artist keynote speaker, awards ceremony and artist workshops led by our
instructors to highlight the outstanding facilities and instruction at the college. The
department's faculty curate three galleries located within the college, which host over a
dozen exhibitions annually. Local, regional and national artists exhibit their works,
provide artist lectures, and engage with our students during receptions, granting
students the unique experience of meeting professional experts in their field of
study. Another part of our ongoing mission for the galleries and department is to display
student artworks at our college. The Art & Design department also grants nine
Foundation scholarships each semester for artistic excellence and we have recruited two
new SSC Foundation sponsors for additional art scholarships. The Graphic Design
program is geared to immediate employment and college transfer. Each semester we offer
one-day mini-workshops to district high schools.

Music

In Fall 2018, the Department of Music has launched a new program —the Associate in
Arts (AA) Degree with a concentration in Music Business. After satisfactorily completing
degree requirements for the curriculum, students will be academically eligible for
transfer to a four-year College to earn a baccalaureate degree in Music Business, Music
Administration, Music Production, Art Administration or Audio Engineering. In
January 2018, a “2+2” articulation agreement between South Suburban College (SSC) and
Illinois State University (ISU) on the new degree was signed. This allows SSC students
to have a hassle-free transfer process to complete their upper division courses in a
baccalaureate degree in Music Business at ISU.

PBI Grant

The South Suburban College Predominantly Black Institution (PBI) Grant receives
funding from the Department of Education. SSC received $560,138.00 this past year as
part of efforts to fulfill Title III legislation goals to improve academic performance in
Reading, Math and English thus address remediation needs that are hindering the
persistence and completion of many SSC students. The primary focus of this grant is to
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increase African-American male persistence as well as developmental level students at
SSC to enhance the probability of their success in college courses and retention from
semester-to-semester. The ultimate goal is degree and certificate completion.

Nearly 70% of SSC’s traditional students require some form of remedial education. This
presents a great challenge to meet the higher education needs of students struggling to
break the cycle of continued remedial education and eventually enroll in college-ready
courses. Most students (80%) are Pell-eligible, and this funding source is crucial for
continued enrollment of district students who lack the resources to enroll in college.

Reading Center

The Reading Center continues to offer reading assistance to students in an individual or
small group setting. With support of the PBI grant, full- and part-time reading faculty
provide students with academic support that aligns with learning outcomes as defined
by the Reading Department. In an effort to have more direct impact on learning
outcomes, a plan is being developed to incorporate discipline specific reading strategies
as part of the academic support being provided.

Carl Perkins Grant

This past year the college received $569,578. This grant helps provide funding for
academic and career and technical skills of postsecondary students who elect to enroll in
career and technical educational programs.

Nursing

Carl Perkins funding was used to provide an onsite NCLEX-RN live review for the 4th
semester nursing students. In addition, Perkins funding provided assistance with the
NCLEX-RN application expense so that our graduates could take the examination in a
timely manner. For 2017, SSC ADN program NCLEX-RN pass rate was 86%.

Pharmacy Technician Program

The SSC Pharmacy Technician Program is an example of a true career ladder. For the last
eight years, the Pharmacy Technician Program offered courses to qualified High School
District #205 AP Chemistry students. As can be seen on the SSC website, some of these
students are now in medically-related professions and will soon be serving our local
community with their healthcare education.

Once the high school students graduate, they can then enter the SSC ASHP-ACPE
accredited (recently awarded another 3 years of accreditation) PHT program where they
will spend one more year in class in order to graduate with their PHT certificate. They
can also opt for an Associate’s degree or completion of the pre-pharmacy courses at SSC
before applying to a college of pharmacy. Students enrolled in the PHT program have a
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strong mentorship with college of pharmacy students from local universities who
complete their academic rotation here in their last year of pharmacy school. These
universities are University of Illinois at Chicago, Chicago State University, Midwestern
University Chicago College of Pharmacy, Purdue University and the University of Iowa.
These students of pharmacy are models for students at SSC. The college of pharmacy
students tutor and assist the PHT students when needed, showing the PHT students that
with hard work and determination they too can achieve a higher goal.

SSC’s mission statement is represented in all that the PHT Program does for our students
and the community. It educates the local residents in whatever means it can to meet the
needs of the medical community to offer a better life whether that is for their own
personal educational goals or for all to have a better lifestyle. SSC responds to all.

Occupational Therapy Assistant Program

Over the years the Carl Perkins funding has allowed our Career and Technical Education
programs to strive in educational quality and providing facilities that meet industry
standards. South Suburban College’s Occupational Therapy Assistant Program (OTA)
has in the last couple of years received funding for facility, technology and software
upgrades. These upgrades have assisted with student learning and effective laboratory
demonstrations. As a direct result of our Perkins outcomes, OTA has received a 10-year
award from Accreditation Council of Occupational Therapy Education (ACOTE)
reaccreditation status; 100% of 2017 graduates passed the certification exam. 4 students
represented SSC at the American Occupational Therapy Association National Conference
in Philadelphia, PA.

Radiologic Technology Program

Carl Perkins funding provides opportunities for continued quality improvements in the
Radiologic Technology Program. Perkins funding allowed the purchase of an upgrade
for existing digital technology and simulated phantoms. Students are able to use the
active lab with the simulated phantoms. This technology is unique because most labs are
non-active. Students are able to evaluate “bad” radiographs. Critical thinking and
radiographic critique are essentials skills that the Radiologic Technology student must
obtain. Upgrade to the system allows students to improve their required skills.
Fluoroscopy and Patient Safety tools were purchased and are used in the classroom to
help students gain a better understanding of new industry standards.

Echocardiography Program:

Over the years, the Echocardiography program has grown from a few students to a
manageable number of students who passionately have interest about the heart and the
people who they will eventually serve. The echocardiography program continues to
improve quality standards with the use of simulators and new ultrasound machines in
the laboratory setting. This year, the program has solicited for accreditation with the
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Commission on Accreditation of Allied Health Education Programs (CAAHEP) - Joint
Review Committee on Education in Cardiovascular Technology (JRC-CVT). In July, the
program had a site visit and was awarded 5 years of accreditation, shortly after. By
having JRC-CVT accreditation, the program is able to obtain additional clinical affiliation
agreements. In addition, students will have greater success on the licensure exam and
obtain valuable diagnostic skills with these additional affiliate partners.

There are two main certification agencies for graduates of these fields. These certifications
are offered by Cardiovascular Credentialing International (CCI) and the American
Registry for Diagnostic Medical Sonography (ARDMS). CCI offers Registered Cardiac
Sonographer

HPOG- Step-Up

South Suburban College has received $3.2 million dollars for five years through the
Administration for Children and Families, U.S. Department of Health & Human Services.
The grant, entitled Partnership to STEP-UP in Health Careers (STEP-UP), is a
collaborative effort between Proactive Community Services and Metropolitan Family
Services-Calumet and Chicago State University being the lead or principal investigator
to provide education and training to Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF)
recipients and other low-income individuals for high demand health professions of
community/ public health, health information administration, nursing, and occupational
therapy.

The STEP-UP program will provide a “wrap-around” approach of supportive services
that addresses social, economic, and academic barriers to ensure participant success and
attainment of highest level of education possible. The program is designed to offer
eligible residents on Chicago’s South Side and neighboring South Suburbs the following
assistance:

o Targeted competencies and training for health professions in high demand with
career ladder options.

e Supportive services with educational training services with the intent to reach the
highest career trajectory level.

o Clear articulated career pathways from the certificate level through the
undergraduate degree level with necessary credentialing.

o Access to internships and employment support to help to overcome obstacles to
attaining and maintaining employment.

The HPOG STEP-UP grant spans a period of 5-years and aims to achieve three specific
goals: (1) enroll 700 participants in training and education programs, (2) train 486
participants to program completion and (3) place 438 participants in healthcare related
employment following degree completion.
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COMPLETED PROJECTS

As part of the PBI Grant, two remaining English Labs were renovated. The updated
layout is more conducive to collaboration with computers around the room and tables in
the center. Students are better able to focus on the lecture portion of class when
appropriate. When students are working at the computers, instructors can see what is
happening at all stations by glancing around the classroom and can quickly assist where
needed.

Using the same model, a math lab was renovated based on the success and positive
outcomes with the English labs. The math lab will hold our statistics courses as well as
other college-level courses utilizing course software in their curriculum. Going forward
it is the intention to also provide open lab time for students to obtain assistance as well
as a Rescue Math program for students who need to improve their placement test
standing.

CURRENT PROJECTS

Parking lot lights will be replaced with new LED light fixtures. This will help with
campus safety of our parking lots along with energy savings supporting our campus
sustainability efforts.

FOR THE FUTURE

The South Suburban College Board of Trustees is fully supportive of plans to enhance the
learning environment. The Board is committed to providing state-of-the-art teaching and
learning mediums, as well as comfortable physical surroundings.

Bathroom Renovations - $1,763,241

The College will be renovating 15 bathrooms this year with total bids accepted in the
amount of $1,763,241. This project will greatly improve the aesthetics and functionality
of these bathrooms for our students while making them all ADA compliant.

SSC Allied Health Addition

This project is currently in its developmental, preliminary stages. Funds will be allocated
from the State of Illinois. The Capital Development Board has selected an Architect. This
state-of-the art building will set South Suburban College apart from all other two-year
schools in the state, and will dramatically increase enrollment in Health Professions.

Direct Digital Control (DDC) upgrade $4,000,000

This HVAC upgrade will assist with even air flow throughout the building. Installing
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new devices will allow better control of room temperature. This project will also save the
college an estimated $200,000 per year. HVAC systems and lighting will be better utilized
in classrooms and offices depending on occupancy. Systems will only run when spaces

are occupied, when no one is in these classrooms/ offices, HVAC and lighting will turn
off.

Main Roof Warranty Extension

Main Roof Warranty extension and re-coating/re-sealing $1,000,000 to protect
classrooms, offices, hallways and equipment, extending our roofing warranty will allow
us to patch and replace old roofing. An entire new roof would cost over $4,000,000
dollars. This warranty will last 15 years.

Painting Exterior Building

Refinishing Exterior Building Envelope-$600,000 The College needs new painting and
sealing of the outside of building. This will help with water infiltration as well as the
appearance of the building.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

This letter of transmittal should be read in conjunction with the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis (pages 4 - 10), which focuses on current activities, accounting
changes, and currently known facts.

Internal Controls: Management of the College is responsible for establishing and
maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the College
are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are
compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles. The internal control structure is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of
reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the
benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the evaluation of costs and benefits requires
estimates and judgements by management.

Tests are made by the College's independent auditors to determine the adequacy of the
internal control structure, including that portion related to federal financial assistance
programs, as well as to determine that the College has complied with applicable laws and
regulations. The results of the tests for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 provided no
instance of material weaknesses in the internal control structure.

Budgetary Controls: In addition, the College maintains budgetary controls. The objective
of the budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the
annual appropriated budget approved by the College's Board of Trustees. Activities of
the funds are included in the annual appropriated budget. The level of budgetary control
(that is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount)
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is established within each individual fund. The College also maintains an encumbrance
accounting system as one technique of accomplishing budgetary control.

Cash Management: For the purpose of overall investment of excess funds, the College is
governed by the Illinois Public College Act, and the statutes governing investment of
public funds of the Illinois Revised Statutes (Chapter 85-901 et. seq.). The fiduciary
responsibility for said investments is entrusted to the South Suburban College Board of
Trustees.

OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Audit: The Illinois Public Community College Act requires an annual audit
of the books of accounts, financial records and transactions of all funds of the College.
The audit is done by independent certified public accountants who are selected by the
Board of Trustees. This requirement has been complied with and the auditor's opinion is
unqualified.

Awards: The Association of School Business Officials International (ASBO) awarded a
Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting for School Systems to South Suburban
College for its CAFR for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. This award certifies that the
CAFR substantially conforms to the principles and standards of financial reporting as
recommended and adopted by ASBO. The award is granted only after an intensive
review of the CAFR by an expert panel of certified public accountants and practicing
school business officials. This is the 26th consecutive year that the College has received
this award.

ASBO's Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting is valid for one year only. We
believe that our current CAFR continues to conform to the Certificate of Excellence
program requirements, and we are submitting it to ASBO.

Acknowledgments: The preparation of this report in a timely manner would not have
been possible without the dedicated service of the entire staff of the Treasurer’s and

Business and Accounting Offices.

In closing, without the leadership and support of the Board of Trustees of the college,
preparation of this report would not have been possible.

Respectfully submitted,

i\
L\{I& ol PO ,/f //(/T//?u

Dr. Lynette D/ Stokes \_  Mart{n Lareau
President / j Vice-President of Administration
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Trustees

South Suburban College
Community College District No. 510
South Holland, lllinois

Report on Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the discretely
presented component unit of South Suburban College Community College District No. 510 (the College),
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the College’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
The financial statements of the discretely presented component unit, the South Suburban College
Foundation, were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

(Continued)



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the business-type activities and the discretely presented component unit of
the College, as of June 30, 2018, and the respective changes in its financial position and, where applicable,
cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 14 to the financial statements, in June 2015 the GASB issued GASB Statement No.
75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. Statement 75
is effective for the College’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2018. This Statement replaces the requirements
of Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other
Than Pensions. Statement 75 establishes standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred
outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources and expenses as well as identified the methods and
assumptions that should be used to project benefit payments, discount projected benefit payments to their
actuarial present value, and attribute that present value to periods of employee service. Note disclosures
and required supplementary information requirements about defined benefit OPEB also are addressed. As
a result, net position was restated by $20,361,459 as of July 1, 2017, for the cumulative effect of the
application of this pronouncement. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis and other Required Supplementary Information, as listed on the table of contents,
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Government Accounting Standards Board who considers it to
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the College’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, other supplementary
information, statistical section, State supplemental reports and certification of chargeback reimbursement
as listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the basic financial statements. The special reports section information included on pages 65 — 71
is required by the lllinois Community College Board and is presented on the regulatory basis of accounting.

The State supplemental reports included on pages 65-71 are the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
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with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the State
supplemental reports included on pages 65-71 are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory section, other supplementary information, statistical section and certification of chargeback
reimbursement as listed in the table of contents have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 25,
2018 on our consideration of the College’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the College’s internal control over financial reporting and

compliance.
CApure LCf
Crowe LLP

Oak Brook, lllinois
October 25, 2018




SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NO. 510
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

The following management discussion and analysis (MD&A) provides a comprehensive overview
of South Suburban College, District 510’s financial position as of June 30, 2018, and its results of
operations for the year then ended. Management has prepared the financial statements and
related footnote disclosures along with this MD&A. The information presented within should be
read in conjunction with additional information contained in our letter of transmittal, which can be
found beginning with page i, and the College’s financial statements immediately following this
discussion and analysis.

Using the Annual Report

The annual report consists of a series of financial statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standard Board (GASB) Statement No. 35, Basic
Financial Statements-and Management's Discussion and Analysis-for Public Colleges and
Universities. These financial statements focus on the financial condition, results of operations,
and cash flows of the College as a whole.

o Statement of Net Position: This statement presents information on all College assets,
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. It is prepared
on an accrual basis with revenues and expenses recognized when earned or incurred.

o Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position: This statement presents
a summary of revenues and expenses classified as either operating or non-operating. The
operating deficit reflected results from the classification of state appropriations as non-
operating revenue.

o Statement of Cash Flows: This statement classifies cash inflows and outflows into the
following classifications: Operating activities, non-capital financing activities, capital
financing activities and investing activities. This information is useful in assessing the
College’s ability to meet maturing financial obligations.

Financial Highlights

e As of June 30, 2018 total assets and deferred outflows of resources reported by the
College were $52,755,417 of which $15,478,077 represents capital assets net of
accumulated depreciation. Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources were
$65,510,935 of which $46,539,580 represents long term obligations.

e The College’s net position decreased by $1,995,358 in fiscal year 2018 from
($10,760,160) to ($12,755,518).

e The College’s net position as of July 1, 2017 was restated to account for the provisions of
GASB Statement 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions. See Note 14 for further details. The 2017 information in this
analysis as well as the statistical section of the report was not restated.




SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NO. 510
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

The College’s largest asset is its investment in capital assets, including land, land
improvements and infrastructure, buildings, and equipment. Capital assets represent 29%
of the College’s total assets.

The College’s net position consist of capital assets net of related debt, expendable
restricted net position and unrestricted net position. Expendable restricted net position
represent assets whose use is restricted by a party independent of the College. In this
case, $372,978 is restricted for our debt service fund with $7,213,941 restricted for
working cash purposes as required by lllinois law.

This is the fifteenth year that the College was required to include the Foundation on its
financial statements as a component unit. As of June 30, 2018, the Foundation has
$1,104,206 in assets, $116,677 in liabilities with net position totaling $987,529. This
represents an increase in total net position of $27,398 from 2017. Total assets and total
liabilities increased $50,375 and $22,977, respectively.

2018 2017
Assets/Deferred outflows:

Current & other assets $ 37,180,557 $ 35,652,321

Capital assets 15,478,077 17,221,181

Deferred outflows 96,783 -
Total assets 52,755,417 52,873,502
Liabilities/Deferred inflows:

Other liabilities 8,083,503 7,171,907

Long-term liabilities 46,539,580 27,235,985

Deferred inflows 10,887,852 8,864,311
Total liabilities /deferred inflows 65,510,935 43,272,203
Net position:

Net investment in capital assets (2,063,492) (526,614)

Restricted 7,586,919 7,604,800

Unrestricted (18,278,945) 2,523,113
Total net position $(12,755,518) $ 9,601,299

Financial Statement Summaries

The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position presents the College’s results
of operations. Operating revenues decreased for fiscal year 2018 to $3,326,162 from $4,145,138
in 2017. This decrease was primarily the result of continued enroliment declines which is
negatively affecting auxiliary enterprise revenues, specifically with the College bookstore.




SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NO. 510
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

The overall net position of the College decreased from $9,601,299 in 2017 (previously reported)
to ($12,755,518) in 2018. The College’s overall change in total net position are a result of GASB
75 and the change in how post employee retirement benefits other than pensions are to be
reflected in the financial statements. The implementation of this standard required a restatement
of beginning net position of ($20,361,459) due to the change in accounting principle. The College

has no direct control over this number.

Please refer to the notes to the Basic Financial Statements for more detailed information on Other

Post-Employment Benefits.

Revenue:

% OF TOTAL % OF TOTAL
REVENUES 2018 REVENUE 2017 REVENUE
Tuition and Fees $ 1,211,130 218% $ 1,873,022 3.75%
State Sources 23,936,063 43.13% 18,912,296 37.82%
Property Taxes 15,541,553 28.00% 15,671,729 31.34%
Federal Grants & Contracts 11,671,607 21.03% 10,453,983 20.90%
Local Sources 499,784 0.90% 607,134 1.21%
Other Operating and Nonoperating 2,642,495 4.76% 2,489,121 4.98%
TOTAL REVENUES $ 55,502,632 $ 50,007,285

A graphic illustration of each revenue source is as follows:
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Revenue by Source

Other Operating and Tuition and Fees

i 2.18%
Local Sources Nonfl;g;?)llng
0.90% .

Federal
Grants &
Contracts
21.03%

State Sources
43.13%

Property Taxes
28.00%

Total Operating and Non-Operating revenue increased by $5,495,347 or 11%. State sources
showed a noticeable spike to $23,936,063 compared to $18,912,296 in 2017. The primary reason
was that the State approved $4,555,707 on July 6, 2017 for its FY17 appropriation for the College.
These proceeds were supposed to be applied to the 2017 fiscal year. However, since the date
fell into fiscal year 2018, those proceeds were then realized in 2018. An additional $1,128,958 of
on-behalf revenue for the State’s contribution to the Other Post Employment Health Benefits Plan
(OPEB) was recognized in FY18, which was new under the provisions of GASB Statement 75.

Federal sources improved to $11,671,607 from a 2017 balance of $10,453,983. The prime
reason for the increase was grant proceeds from the prior year that were part of the State
appropriation that recognized in FY18.

Expenses:

Total operating expenses for the year are $56,188,989 which is an increase of $1,925,737 from
2017 or 3.5%. A breakdown and categorical comparison is as follows:
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% OF TOTAL

% OF TOTAL

OPERATING EXPENSES 2018 EXPENSES 2017 EXPENSES
Instruction $ 23,145,201 41.19% $ 21,783,974 40.14%
Academic Support 1,232,316 2.19% 1,179,924 217%
Student Services 7,169,781 12.76% 7,753,717 14.29%
Public Services 3,897,307 6.94% 3,489,848 6.43%
Operations & Maintenance 6,478,200 11.53% 5,814,228 10.71%
Institutional Support 4,059,439 7.22% 4,874,981 8.98%
Auxiliary Enterprises 4,237,146 7.54% 4,069,967 7.50%
General Administrative 3,681,079 6.55% 2,757,986 5.08%
Depreciation 2,288,520 4.07% 2,538,627 4.68%
TOTAL EXPENSES $ 56,188,989 $ 54,263,252

A graphic illustration of each operating expenditure category is as follows:

Operating Expenses

General Depreciation
Administrative 4.07%
6.55%

Auxiliary
Enterprises
7.54%

Institutional A=

Support ~
7.22% -
Operations &'
Maintenance
11.53%
Public Services o i
6.94% Student Services ;3p:;nr[tc
ook 2.19%

The primary message throughout the expenditure side of the equation remains controlling
expenditures. If OPEB on-behalf payments are backed out as well as the OPEB expense now
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required by GASB 75 of $1,702,977 to account for the changes in the net OPEB liability and
deferred inflows/outflows now required to be presented, operating expenditures would be
$53,357,054, which is less than in 2017. With the lean economic times that we are currently
experiencing, the need for the College to slightly alter the delivery of services to become more
cost effective is prevalent.

While economic times are challenging, the commitment to not cutting programs is evident with
the $1,361,227 increase in instructional costs. Total employees decreased again this year
down to 411. That is 56 fewer than 2017 and 207 less employees than just five years ago.
This reduction in force is across all spectrums and primarily the result of the Board approved
slow fill policy for retiring employees.

Debt:

The College issued $9.97 million general obligation debt with a long-term rating of A+ with a
stable outlook in 2017. Standard & Poor’s cited the following in arriving at its rating:

o Access to the deep and diverse Chicago metropolitan area economy, and
e Very strong available reserves despite recent drawdowns

Please refer to the notes to the Basic Financial Statements for more detailed information on
Long-Term Debt of the College.

Capital Assets:

The College has invested $67,577,909 (not adjusted for inflation) in capital assets, including
buildings, vehicles, equipment, land and land improvements as of June 30, 2018. Net of
accumulated depreciation, the College’s net capital assets at June 30, 2018 were
$15,478,077. This amount represents a net decrease of $1,743,104 over the June 30, 2017
balance of $17,221,181. A drop in the valuation of capital assets due to scheduled
accumulated depreciation of existing assets was more than the additions. Please refer to the
notes to the Basic Financial Statements for more detailed information on Capital Assets of the
College.

Overall Financial Position:

The end result was that net position declined from the previous year as a result of continued
declining enroliment. The College is trying to mitigate this trend without cutting services to
our students or programs.

The College’s bottom line continues to take a hit which is reflected in the overall decline fund
balance. The College continually looks for ways to reinvent itself and the delivery of services
with its largest asset, personnel. Every vacant position is critically look and is subject to a
slow fill, Board approved policy. By not filling or slow filling non-critical positions, the College
was able to operate with 56 fewer employees. The College remains resilient during these
tough economic times and would expect that trend to continue into the future.




SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NO. 510
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Economic Factors:

The overall negative financial position of the State of lllinois has had a trickledown effect that
appears to continue into the foreseeable future. The College now has to include on the
financial statements post-employment benefits that should be funded by the State (in a similar
manner that pensions currently are). However, with the State of lllinois crippled with pension
debt, it is inevitable that a portion of the State’s pension liability will be passed along to the
local community colleges at some point in time.

Request for information:

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the College’s finances for all
interested parties. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Controller/Treasurer
at 15800 S. State Street, South Holland, IL 60473; or by telephone at (708) 596-2000.
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STATEMENT 1
SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE

COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NUMBER 510
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2018

Primary Component Unit
Institution Foundation
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,667,941 $ 16,213
Short-term investments 15,635,340 2,963
Taxes receivable, net 9,478,660 -
Other receivables, net 4,703,362 -
Inventories 347,569 -
Total current assets 31,832,872 19,176
Noncurrent assets:
Investments 5,347,685 1,085,030
Capital assets, not being depreciated 1,460,632 -
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 14,017,445 -
Total noncurrent assets 20,825,762 1,085,030
Total assets 52,658,634 1,104,206
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
OPEB 96,783 -
Total deferred outflows of resources 96,783 -
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 1,714,913 116,677
Accrued payroll 489,591 -
Unearned tuition revenue 2,214,157 -
Unearned rental revenue 999,167 -
Current portion of bonds payable 2,110,000 -
Current portion of compensated absences 65,077 -
Current portion of capital lease 43,883
Current portion of other long-term liabilities 446,715 -
Total current liabilities 8,083,503 116,677
Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds payable 24,451,288 -
Compensated absences 958,745 -
Net OPEB liability 20,163,500 -
Other long-term liabilities 966,047 -
Total noncurrent liabilities 46,539,580 -
Total liabilities 54,623,083 116,677
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Property tax revenue 8,872,133 -
OPEB 2,015,719 -
Total deferred inflows of resources 10,887,852 -
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets (2,063,492) -
Restricted for:
Expendable:
Scholarships - 453,124
Working cash 7,213,941 -
Debt service 372,978 -
Non-expendable:
Scholarships - 496,545
Unrestricted (18,278,945) 37,860
Total net position (12,755,518) $ 987,529

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

1.



STATEMENT 2
SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE

COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NUMBER 510
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Primary Component Unit
Institution Foundation
REVENUES
Operating revenues:
Tuition and fees (net of scholarship allowances $ 1,211,130 $ -
of $10,910,866)
Auxiliary enterprise revenue 2,115,032 -
Donations and contributions - 182,847
Fund raising - 82,872
Total operating revenues 3,326,162 265,719
EXPENSES
Operating expenses:
Instruction 23,145,201 -
Academic support 1,232,316 144,543
Student services 7,169,781 -
Public services 3,897,307 -
Operations and maintenance 6,478,200 -
Institutional support 4,059,439 -
Auxiliary enterprises 4,237,146 -
General administrative 3,681,079 130,279
Fund raising - 49,288
Depreciation 2,288,520 -
Total operating expenses 56,188,989 324,110
Operating income (loss) (52,862,827) (58,391)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
State sources 23,936,063 -
Property taxes 15,541,553 -
Federal grants and contracts 11,671,607 -
Local sources 499,784 -
Investment income 223,750 85,789
Interest on capital asset related debt (1,309,001) -
Other nonoperating revenues 303,713 -
Net non-operating revenues 50,867,469 85,789
Increase (decrease) in net position (1,995,358) 27,398
NET POSITION
Net position - beginning of year, as restated (10,760,160) 960,131
Net position - end of year $ (12,755,518) $ 987,529

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 12.



SOUTH SUBURBAN COMMUNITY COLLEGE
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NUMBER 510
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended June 30, 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Tuition and fees
Auxiliary enterprises
Payments to:
Employees
Suppliers
Net cash used from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State appropriations
Property taxes
Other local sources
Federal grants & contracts
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of capital assets and construction
Principal paid on capital debt and leases

Net cash used from capital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment income
Purchases of investments

Net cash used from investing activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

RECONCILIATION OF NET OPERATING REVENUES/(EXPENSES)

TO NET CASH USED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation expense
State payment for retirement obligation
OPEB expense
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Inventories and other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and wages
Unearned tuition revenue

Net cash used from operating activities

NONCASH TRANSACTIONS
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
State university retirement revenue
State university retirement expense

Community college health insurance security fund revenue
Community college health insurance security fund expense

CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Accretion of interest added to capital debt

Primary
Institution

$ 1,169,519
2,215,334

(26,788,018)
(10,881,858)
(34,285,023)

8,949,642
15,689,249
1,802,664
11,671,607
38,113,162

(545,416)
(2,151,623)
(2,697,039)

223,750
(997,278)
(773,528)

357,572

1,310,369
$ 1,667,941

$ (52,862,827)

2,288,520
12,947,985
3,345,851

100,302
117,459

(180,702)

(41,611)

$  (34,285023)

$ 12,947,985
(12,947,985)
1,624,874
(1,624,874)

$ 1,309,001

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

STATEMENT 3

13.



SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NO. 510
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of South Suburban College of Cook County Community College District No. 510
(the College) conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP)
as applicable to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. These
authoritative pronouncements are consistent with accounting practices prescribed or permitted by the
lllinois Community College Board (ICCB). The following is a summary of the significant policies.

Reporting Entity and Its Services: The College has adopted the provisions of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity amended by GASB Statement
No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units, and GASB Statement No. 61,
The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus, under which these basic financial statements include all
organizations, activities, functions and component units for which the College is financially accountable.
Financial accountability is defined as the appointment of a voting majority of the component unit’s board,
and either (1) the College’s ability to impose its will over the component unit, or (2) the possibility that the
component unit will provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the College. The following
entity was included in these financial statements based on the above criteria:

e South Suburban College Foundation

Discretely Presented Component Unit: The South Suburban College Foundation (Foundation) is included
in the reporting entity because of its operational and financial relationship with South Suburban College.
The Foundation meets the criteria for discrete presentation and is shown in the component unit column in
the basic financial statements. The Foundation is reported in a separate column to emphasize that it is
legally separate from the College. The Foundation issues separate financial statements and has a June 30
year end. Separate financial statements can be obtained by contacting its office at South Suburban College.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting: For financial statement reporting purposes, the College is
considered a special purpose government engaged only in business-type activities. Accordingly, the
College’s financial statements are prepared using the flow of economic resources measurement focus.
This means that all assets, all liabilities (whether current or non-current) and all deferred inflows of
resources associated with its activity are included on its statement of net position.

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in
the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardless
of the measurement focus applied. The College uses the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual
basis, revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they are earned and expenses are
recognized in the period incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Non-exchange
transactions, in which the College receives value without directly giving equal value in return, include
property taxes, federal, state and local grants, state appropriations, and other contributions.

Capital Assets: Capital assets include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets, such as roads
and sidewalks. The College defines capital assets as assets with an initial unit cost of $5,000 or more, the
component unit defines capital assets as assets with an initial unit cost of $500 or more and an estimated
useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition or acquisition
value at the date of donation in the case of gifts. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not
add value to the asset or materially extend the asset’s life are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital
assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

(Continued)
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SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NO. 510
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

In prior years, the College implemented GASB Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Intangible Assets. It defines an intangible asset’s required characteristics, and generally requires that they
be treated as capital assets. Included with the College’s equipment capital assets, the College has
capitalized an intangible asset, computer software. The College follows the same capitalization policy and
estimated useful life for its intangible asset as it does for its equipment capital assets. The College also
amortizes the intangible asset utilizing the straight-line method.

Property, plant and equipment of the College are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following useful lives:

Years
Land Not depreciated
Buildings 40-60
Building and Land Improvements 10-20
Equipment 5-10
Computer Technology 3-5
Infrastructure 10-75

Depreciation expense for fiscal year 2018 was $2,288,520 for the College and $0 for the component unit.

Investments and the Statement of Cash Flows Policy: Investments having a maturity date of less than one
year from the time of purchase are reported at amortized cost. The lllinois Funds is an external investment
pool administered by the lllinois State Treasurer that is recorded at amortized cost. The lllinois School
District Liquid Asset Fund is composed of savings deposit accounts that are recorded at cost. Certificates
of deposit are recorded at cost. All other investments are stated at fair value in accordance with GASB 31.
State statute requires these funds to comply with the lllinois Public Funds Investment Act. Investments
with an original maturity of one year or greater are reported as Noncurrent on the Statement of Net Position.

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the College considers all highly liquid investments (including
restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Inventory: Inventory is valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. Inventory is recorded on the
basis of a physical count.

Property Tax Revenue Recognition: Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on January 1. They are
levied in December (by passage of a Tax Levy Ordinance). Tax bills are prepared by the County and issued
on or about March 1 and August 1 the following year. They are due and payable in two installments on or
about April 1 and on or about September 1 the following year. The County collects such taxes and remits
them periodically. Property tax revenues are recognized on an accrual basis of accounting. Pursuant to
the Board of Trustees resolution, property tax levies passed in December 2017 were allocated 50% to fiscal
year 2018. The College includes a provision for uncollectible property taxes of 3% of the receivable.

Accrued Vacations Payable, Sick Pay and Other Employee Benefit Amounts: The College inventories its
employee benefits at year end based on both a legal commitment and internal policy. Support staff
members, administrative personnel and faculty members are credited with 12 days of sick leave at the
beginning of employment. Accumulated leave is not subject to a maximum number of days and can be
taken in the event of iliness or doctors’ appointments.

(Continued)
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SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NO. 510
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Upon employee termination, the College has no commitment for accumulated sick leave, and therefore, no
liability is recorded. Employees who retire are given credit for unused sick leave toward years of service in
the State Universities Retirement System.

Support staff members are entitled to 10 vacation days per year for the first 4 years of employment, 15
days per year for the 5th through 14th year, and 20 days per year for the 15th year and any years beyond
that. Administrators who are employed on a 52-week contract shall be entitled to 20 annual days of
vacation. Faculty members are not entitled to vacation days.

The College had $1,023,822 in accrued vacations payable on an accrual basis at the year end. Of this
amount $65,077 was determined to be a current liability and the balance of $958,745 was determined to
be non-current.

Claims and Judgments: Liability resulting from claims and judgments, if any, is recorded in accordance
with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting
Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements.

Unearned Tuition and Fee Revenue/Deferred Inflows of Resources: Tuition and fee revenues collected
during the fiscal year, which relate to the period after June 30, 2018, have been recognized as unearned
revenues. Unearned revenues arise when resources are received by the College before it has a legal claim
to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In
subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the College has a legal claim
to the resources, the liability for unearned revenue is removed from the statement of net position and
revenue is recognized.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents
an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time. The College has two types of items which arises only under the accrual
basis of accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the first item, property tax
revenue, is reported in the statement of net position. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an
inflow of resources in the period that the amounts for which the property taxes are levied. The second item
is for OPEB and include differences between expected and actual experience and changes in OPEB
assumptions and are amortized over a closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service
lives of all employees that are provided with OPEB through the OPEB plan, determined as of the beginning
of the measurement period and differences between projected and actual earnings on OPEB plan
investments.

Deferred Outflows of Resources: In addition to assets the statement of net position will sometimes report
a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate element, deferred outflows of
resources, represent an disposition of net position that applies to a future period (s) and so will not be
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until that time. The College has one item which only
arises under the accrual basis of accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, for
OPEB, deferred outflows of resources include (1) changes in proportion and differences between College
contributions and proportionate share of contributions are amortized over a closed period equal to the
average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with OPEB through the
OPEB plan, determined as of the beginning of the measurement period (2) College contributions
subsequent to the measurement date which are recognized in the subsequent period.

(Continued)
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SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NO. 510
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Classification of Revenues and Expenses: Operating revenue includes activities that have the
characteristics of exchange transactions such as (1) student tuition and fees, and (2) sales and services of
auxiliary enterprises, net of scholarship discounts and allowances. Non-operating revenue includes
activities that have the characteristics of non-exchange transactions, such as (1) local property taxes, (2)
state appropriations, and (3) most federal, state and local grants and contracts. The College classifies all
expenses as operating in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, except for
interest expense which is classified as nonoperating.

Bond Issuance Costs: Bond issuance costs are reported an expense in the year of issuance in accordance
with GASB Statement 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities.

Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual
results could differ from those estimates, but the College believes that the differences will be insignificant.

Scholarship Discounts and Allowances: Student tuition and fee revenues, and certain other revenues from
students, are reported net of scholarship discounts and allowances in the statements of revenues,
expenses, and changes in net position. Scholarship discounts and allowances are the difference between
the stated charge for goods and services provided by the College, and the amount that is paid by students
and/or third parties making payments on the students’ behalf. Certain governmental grants, such as Pell
grants, and other federal, state, or nongovernmental programs, are recorded as either operating or
nonoperating revenues in the College’s financial statements. To the extent that revenues from such
programs are used to satisfy tuition and fees and other student charges, the College has recorded a
scholarship discount and allowance.

Net Position: The College’s net position is classified as follows:

¢ NetInvestment in Capital Assets — This represents the College’s total investment in capital assets,
net of outstanding debt obligations related to those capital assets.

e Restricted Net Position —

Nonexpendable - Net Position subject to externally imposed stipulations that they be maintained
permanently by the College.

Expendable - This includes resources that the College is legally or contractually obligated to spend
in accordance with restrictions imposed by external third parties. When both restricted and
unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the College’s policy to use restricted resources
first, then unrestricted resources when they are needed.

e Unrestricted Net Position — This includes resources derived from student tuition and fees, state
appropriations, and sales and services of auxiliary enterprises. These resources are used for
transactions relating to the educational and general operations of the College and may be used at
the discretion of the governing board to meet current expenses for any purpose.

(Continued)
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SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NO. 510
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Pensions: For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the plan net position of
the State Universities Retirement System of lllinois (SURS) and additions to/deductions from SURS’ plan
net position has been determined on the same basis as they are reported by SURS. For this purpose,
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

For the purposes of financial reporting, the State of lllinois (the State) and participating employers are
considered to be under a special funding situation. A special funding situation is defined as a circumstance
in which a non-employer entity is legally responsible for making contributions directly to a pension plan that
is used to provide pensions to the employees of another entity or entities and either (1) the amount of the
contributions for which the non-employer entity is legally responsible is not dependent upon one or more
events unrelated to pensions or (2) the non-employer is the only entity with a legal obligation to make
contributions directly to a pension plan. The State of lllinois is considered a non-employer contributing
entity. Participating employers are considered employer contributing entities. As such, the net pension
liability, related deferred inflows of resources, deferred outflows of resources and pension expense are not
reflected on the College’s basic financial statements.

OPEB: For purposes of measuring the College’s OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the State of Illinois Department of Central Management Services Community College Health
Insurance Security Fund (“CCHISF”) and additions to/deductions from the CCHISF Plan’s fiduciary net
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the CCHISF Plan. For this
purpose, the CCHISF Plan recognizes benefit payments when due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value, except for money market investments and participating
interest earning investment contracts that have a maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less, which
are reported at cost.

NOTE 2 - BUDGET AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING
The College follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data:

A.  The administration submits to the Board of Trustees a proposed operating budget for the fiscal
year. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

B.  Budget hearings are conducted.

C.  The budget is legally enacted through passage of a resolution.

D.  The budget may be amended by the Board of Trustees.

E. Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)

except that certain on-behalf payments are not budgeted for nor are bond proceeds.

(Continued)
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SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NO. 510
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2018

NOTE 2 - BUDGET AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING (Continued)

The level of control (level at which expenditures may not exceed budget/appropriations) is the Fund.
Budget/appropriations lapse at year end.

The President is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between programs within any fund; however,
any revisions that alter the total expenditures/ expenses of any fund must be approved by the Board of
Trustees in a manner consistent with the original budget adoption process. Any budget transfers between
programs within any fund exceeding 5% of the total budget must also be approved by the Board of Trustees.
There were no budget revisions during the fiscal year.

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and Cash Equivalents: The carrying amount of cash was $1,667,941 for the College and $16,213 for
the Foundation at June 30, 2018. The bank balances were $1,801,874 and $75,853, respectively. The
difference between the reported cash amount and the bank balance primarily represents outstanding
deposits and checks that have not cleared the bank. All College account balances at banks were either
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) for $250,000, or collateralized with securities
of the U.S. Government or with letters of credit issued by the Federal Home Loan Bank held in the College’s
name by financial institutions acting as the College’s agent at June 30, 2018. All Foundation account
balances at banks were insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) for $250,000 at June
30, 2018. The College’s cash for purposes of this note includes cash and cash equivalents, which includes
cash and money market accounts.

Certificates of Deposit: Certificates of Deposit amounted to $7,430,000 for the College and $0 for the
Foundation as of June 30, 2018. In accordance with College policy, certificates of deposit were
collateralized with securities of the U.S. Government in an amount equal to 110% of the funds on deposit.
All investment collateral is held in safekeeping in the College’s name by financial institutions acting as the
College’s agent. Collateral is priced to market monthly and monitored regularly with additional collateral
requested as necessary.

Investments: The College is authorized by State Statute and their own local ordinances to invest in the
following:

e Deposits, including certificate of deposit, savings account, and checking account

e Money Markets

e Obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. Agencies and Instrumentalities

e Short-Term Obligations of corporations organized in the U.S.

The Foundation is authorized by their own investment policy to invest in the following:

Deposits, including certificate of deposit, saving account, checking account
Money Markets

Obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. Agencies and Instrumentalities
Deposit Account

United States and International Stocks

Fixed Income

(Continued)
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SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NO. 510
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2018

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

The following schedule reports the values and maturities (using the segmented time distribution method)
for the College’s investments at June 30, 2018.

Investment
Maturities
Reported Less than One to Five to Greater than
Investment Type Value One Year Five Years _Ten Years _Ten Years
U.S. Agencies $ 4,060,252 $ 1,248,200 $ 1,415,059 $ 1,396,993 $ -
Municipal Bonds 794,696 75,063 719,633 - -
Total 4,854,948 $ 1,323,263 $ 2,134,692 $ 1,396,993 § -

Investments Not Sensitive to
Interest Rate Risk:

Illinois Funds 589,483
Money Market Funds 8,108,595
Total Investments $13,553,025

The Foundation maintains all investments with US Bank. The following schedule reports the values and
maturities (using the segmented time distribution method) for these investments at June 30, 2018 (note that
all investments held by the Foundation are mutual funds who do not have maturity dates and thus not
subject to interest rate risk).

Reported

Investment Type Value
Money Market Mutual Fund $ 2,963

Total current investments 2,963
Mutual Funds International Equity 216,305
Mutual Funds Domestic Equity 460,446
Mutual Funds Fixed Income 408,279

Total noncurrent investments 1,085,030
Total $ 1,087,993

Interest Rate Risk — The College and the Foundation do not have a formal investment policy that limits
investment maturities as a means of managing exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest
rates.

Credit Risk — The College’s investment policy limits investments in short term obligations of corporations
organized in the United States with assets exceeding $500,000,000 if (i) such obligations are rated at the
time of purchase at one of the three highest classifications established by at least two standard rating
services and which mature not later than 180 days from the date of purchase; (ii) such purchases do not
exceed 10% of the corporation’s outstanding obligations or (iii) in money market mutual funds registered
under the Investment Company Act of 1940.

(Continued)

20.



SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NO. 510
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2018

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Credit ratings for the College’s investments in debt securities and the lllinois Funds as described by
Standard & Poor’s at June 30, 2018 are as follows:

% of

Credit Total
Investment Type Ratings Amount Investments
State Treasurer — lllinois Funds AAAM $ 589,483 4.35%
FHLB’s AA+ 1,725,268 12.73%
FFCB’s AA+ 1,341,157 9.90%
FNMA'’s AA+ 993,827 7.33%
Municipal Bonds AA 794,696 5.86%
Investments not subject to credit risk N/A 8,108,595 59.83%

Total investments $13,553,025
The Foundation does not invest in debt securities and thus no credit ratings are available.

Custodial Credit Risk — Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty,
the College will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The College and the Foundation are fully collateralized as of June 30,
2018.

Concentration of Credit Risk — The College places no limit on the amount that may be invested in any one
issuer. See above for listing of investments whose balance is greater than 5% of the College’s total
investments. The Foundation limits investments in domestic equities to 59% of the total portfolio,
international equities to 41%, and fixed income to 60%. Investments in domestic equities, international
equities and fixed income equities were 42.32%, 19.88% and 37.53%, respectively of the total investments
at year-end.

The College categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by GAAP.
The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs
are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable
inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. The College has the following recurring fair value
measurements as of June 30, 2018 using a matrix pricing model:

(Continued)
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Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices Significant

in Active Other Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
June 30, 2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Investments by fair value level
Debt securities
Federal Home Loan Bank Note $ 1,725,268 $ - $ 1725268 $ -
Federal National Mortgage Association Note 993,827 - 993,827 -
Federal Farm Credit Bank Note 1,341,157 - 1,341,157 -
Local Government Municipal Bonds 794,696 - 794,696 -
US Treasury FRN 499,911 - 499,911 -
Total debt securities 5,354,859 - 5,354,859 -
Total investments measured at fair value $ 5,354,859 $ - $ 5,354,859 $ -
Reconciliation of footnote to Statement 1:
College
Per Footnote:
Total Certificates of Deposit $ 7,430,000
Total Investments 13,553,025
Total per Footnote $ 20,983,025
Per Financial Statements:
Short-Term Investments $ 15,635,340
Long-Term Investments 5,347,685
Total per Statement 1 $ 20,983,025
Foundation
Per Footnote:
Total Investments $ 1,087,993
Per Financial Statements:
Short-Term Investments $ 2,963
Long-Term Investments 1,085,030
Total Investments per Statement 1 $ 1,087,993

(Continued)
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NOTE 4 - LONG-TERM DEBT

A summary of general long-term debt transactions for the year ended June 30, 2018 are as follows:

Restated
Balance Balance Current
July 1, 2017 Issuances Retirements  June 30, 2018 Portion
General obligation
bonds $ 27,362,287 $ 1,309,001 $ 2,110,000 $ 26,561,288 $ 2,110,000
Capital lease payable 85,506 - 41,623 43,883 43,883
Early retirement
benefits (Note 10) 1,608,509 307,515 503,262 1,412,762 446,715
Accrued vacations
payable (Note 1) 983,683 115,415 75,276 1,023,822 65,077
Net OPEB
liability (Note 5) 20,457,384 - 293,994 20,163,500 -

Total general long-
term debt

$ 50,497,369 $

1,731,931 § 3,024,045

49,205,255 2,665,675

* This amount represents the accretion of interest for the Series 2002 Capital Appreciation Bonds, Series
2008 Capital Appreciation Bonds and the Series 2017 Capital Appreciation Bonds.

The outstanding bonds at June 30, 2018 are as follows:

General Obligation Limited Tax College Capital Appreciation Bonds Series 2002

Original Amount
Bond Issue
Interest Rates

Final Payment Date

Payment dates

$10,000,000
June 27, 2002
4.7% -5.7%
June 1, 2022

December 1, with final payment June 1, 2022

The bonds were issued to pay outstanding claims against the College from prior years. Interest is not paid,
but rather accretes to principal each December 1st.

Year Ending Interest Principal Accretion of
June 30 Rate Payments Interest
2019 5.31% $ 2,110,000 $ 316,396
2020 5.40 2,110,000 218,483
2021 5.47 2,110,000 113,659
2022 5.70 2,135,000 640
Total 8,465,000 $ 649,178
Accreted Value at June 30, 2018 $ 7,815,822
(Continued)

23.



SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE

COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NO. 510
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018
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General Obligation Limited Tax College Capital Appreciation Bonds Series 2008

Original Amount
Bond Issue
Interest Rates

Final Payment Date
Payment dates

$4,999,288

January 7, 2009

5.05% - 5.53%

December 1, 2027

June 1, with final payment December 1, 2027

The bonds were issued to fund capital improvements throughout the College. Interest is not paid, but

rather accretes to principal each June 1st.

Year Ending
June 30

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028

Total

Accreted Value at June 30, 2018

Interest Principal Accretion of
Rate Payments Interest
- $ - $ 436,566
- - 459,975
- - 736,620
- - 524,142
5.05% 2,085,000 445,222
5.19 2,110,000 358,417
5.30 2,110,000 264,695
5.39 2,110,000 164,068
5.46 2,110,000 56,139
5.53 1,070,000 -

11,595,000 $ 3,445,844
$ 8,149,156

General Obligation Limited Tax College Capital Appreciation Bonds Series 2017

Original Amount
Bond Issue

Interest Rates

Final Payment Date
Payment dates

$9,969,344

February 15, 2017

4.49% - 5.02%

December 1, 2035

June 1, with final payment December 1, 2035

The bonds were issued to refund the previously issued Series 2016 Debt Certificates. Interest is not paid,
but rather accretes to principal each June 1st. The proceeds of the 2017 bonds, net of issuance costs,
were used to advance refund $9,700,000 of outstanding 2016 Debt Certificates, which were issued on
December 7, 2016 to fund capital improvements at the College. The net proceeds of the refunding issue
were placed in an irrevocable escrow account and invested in U.S. Government Securities. The Debt
Certificates were subsequently called and as of June 30, 2017, $0 of the 2016 Debt Certificates remained
outstanding. The aggregate difference in debt service between the refunding debt and the refunded debt
is $9,605,387, and the economic loss on the transaction was $811,634.

(Continued)
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Year Ending Interest Principal Accretion of
June 30 Rate Payments Interest

2019 - $ - $ 510,679
2020 - - 535,321
2021 - - 561,154
2022 - - 588,235
2023 - - 616,624
2024 - - 646,385
2025 - - 677,584
2026 - - 710,291
2027 - - 744,578
2028 4.49% 1,360,000 749,752
2029 4.57 2,430,000 1,033,424
2030 4.65 2,430,000 578,424
2031 4.71 2,430,000 491,087
2032 4.78 2,430,000 397,930
2033 4.88 2,430,000 297,761
2034 4.94 2,430,000 191,226
2035 497 2,430,000 78,289
2036 5.02 1,635,000 -
Total 20,005,000 $ 9,408,690
Accreted Value at June 30, 2018 $ 10,596,310

A summary of debt service requirements to maturity for bonds follows:

Fiscal Year Principal
2019 $ 2,110,000
2020 2,110,000
2021 2,110,000
2022 2,135,000
2023 2,085,000
2024-2028 10,870,000
2029-2033 12,150,000
2034-2037 6,495,000

Total $ 40,065,000

Legal Debt Margin: The College is subject to a legal debt margin of 8.625% of equalized assessed value
of property in the College. As of June 30, 2018, the equalized assessed valuation of the College is
$2,997,805,050 and the legal debt margin is $258,560,686. The College is in compliance with this
requirement.

(Continued)
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NOTE 4 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Debt Covenants: The College is subject to disclosure covenants for its general obligation bonds. These
covenants include disclosure of annual financial information 210 days after fiscal year end. Noncompliance
could result in the bondholders filing legal action against the College compelling the College to complete
its filings. As of June 30, 2018, the College has completed its 2017 filing and is in compliance.

Leases:

Capital Lease — The College leases copying machines with a historical cost and accumulated depreciation
of $197,946 and $158,356, respectively, under capital lease arrangements for the year ended June 30,
2018.

Future minimum lease payments at June 30, 2018 are as follows:

Year ended June 30 Amount
2019 $_45153
Total minimum lease payments 45,153
Less amounts representing interest 1,270
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 43,883

NOTE 5 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT

Plan Description: The State of Illinois Department of Central Management Services Community Health
Insurance Security Fund (“CCHISF”) is a non-appropriated trust fund held outside the State Treasury, with
the State Treasurer as custodian. Additions deposited into the Trust are for the sole purpose of providing
the health benefits to retirees, as established under the plan, and associated administrative costs. CCHISF
is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit post-employment healthcare plan that covers retired
employees and their dependents of lllinois community college districts throughout the statement of lllinois,
excluding the City Colleges of Chicago. As a result of the Governor's Executive Order 12-01, the
responsibilities in relation to CCHISF were transferred to the Department of Central Management Services
as of July 1, 2013. The Department administers the plan with the cooperation of the State Universities
Retirement System and the boards of trustees of the various community college districts. All members
receiving benefits from the State Universities Retirement System (“SURS”) who have been full-time
employees of a community college district or an association of a community college who have paid the
required active member CCHISF contributions prior to retirement are eligible to participate in CCHISF.
Survivors of an annuitant or benefit recipient eligible for CCHISF coverage are also eligible for coverage
under CCHISF. CCHISF issues a publicly available report that can be obtained at
https://www.auditor.illinois.gov/Audit-Reports/Compliance-Agency-List/ CMS/CCHISP/FY17-CMS-
CCHISE-Fin-Full.pdf.

Benefits Provided: CCHISF health coverage includes provisions for medical, prescription drugs, vision,
dental and behavioral health benefits. Eligibility to participate in the CCHISF is defined in the State
Employees Group Insurance Act of 1971 (Act) (5 ILCS 375/3). The Act (5 ILCS 375/6.9) also establishes
health benefits for community college benefit recipients and dependent beneficiaries.

(Continued)
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Contributions: The State Employees Group Insurance Act of 1971 (5 ILCS 375/6.10) requires every active
contributor of the State Universities Retirement System (SURS), who is a full-time employee of a community
college district or an association of community college boards, to make contributions to the plan at the rate
of 0.5% of salary. The same section of statute requires every community college district or association of
community college boards that is an employer under the SURS, to contribute to the plan an amount equal
to 0.5% of the salary paid to its full-time employees who participate in the plan. The State Pension Funds
Continuing Appropriation Act (40 ILCS 15/1.4) requires the State to make an annual appropriation to the
fund in an amount certified by the SURS Board of Trustees.

The State Employees Group Insurance Act of 1971 (5 ILCS 375/6.9) requires the Director of the Department
to determine the rates and premiums for annuitants and dependent beneficiaries and establish the cost-
sharing parameter, as well as funding. At the option of the board of trustees, the college districts may pay
all or part of the balance of the cost of coverage for retirees from their district. Administrative costs are paid
by the CCHISF. The College and the State each contributed to the OPEB plan $96,783 for the year ended
June 30, 2018, respectively.

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to OPEB:

At June 30, 2018, the College reported a liability of $20,163,500 for its proportionate share of the collective
net OPEB liability.

College’s proportionate share of the collective net OPEB liability $ 20,163,500
State’s proportionate share that is associated with the College 19,927,029
Total $ 40,090,529

The collective net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total OPEB liability used to
calculate the collective net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016.
The College’s proportion of the collective net OPEB liability was based on the College’s fiscal year 2017
contributions to the OPEB plan relative to the fiscal year 2017 contributions of all participating Colleges. At
June 30, 2017, the College’s proportion was 1.105670 percent, which was a decrease of 0.018391 percent
from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2016 (1.124061 percent).

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the College recognized OPEB expense of $3,345,851. The College’s
proportionate share of collective OPEB expense is recognized as an on-behalf payment as both revenue
and expense in the College’s financial statements. The basis of allocation used is the actual OPEB expense
for contributing entities. As a result, the College recognized on-behalf revenue and OPEB expense of
$1,624,874.

See Note 14 for the adjustment of the College’s beginning net position for the implementation of GASB
Statement 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions.

(Continued)
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At June 30, 2018, the College reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB plan
from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ - $ 57,067
Changes in assumptions - 1,679,603
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on plan investments - 212
Changes in proportionate and differences between College
contributions and proportionate share for contributions - 278,837
College contributions subsequent to the measurement date 96,783 -
Total $ 96,783 $ 2,015719

Of the total amount reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB, $96,783 resulting from
College contributions subsequent to the measurement date and before the end of the fiscal year will be
included as a reduction of the collective net OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2019. Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be
recognized in the College’s OPEB expense as follows:

Year ended June 30,

2019 $  (403,154)
2020 (403,154)
2021 (403,154)
2022 (403,154)
2023 (403,103)

Total $  (2,015,719)

Actuarial Assumptions: The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30,

2016, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless

otherwise specified:

Inflation
Salary

increases

Investment rate
of return

Healthcare
cost trend rates

2.75%

Depends on service and ranges from 10.00% at less than 1 year of service to 3.75%
at 34 or more years of service. Salary increase includes a 3.75% wage inflation
assumption.

0%, net of OPEB plan investment expense, including inflation.

Actual trend used for fiscal year 2017. For fiscal years on and after 2018, trend starts
at 8.00% and 9.00% for non-Medicare costs and post-Medicare costs, respectively,
and gradually decreases to an ultimate trend of 4.50%. Additional trend rate of 0.52%
is added to non-Medicare cost on and after 2020 to account for the Excise Tax.
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Mortality rates for retirement and beneficiary annuitants were based on the RP-2014 White Collar Annuitant
Mortality Table. For disabled annuitants mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Disabled Annuitant
table. Mortality rates for pre-retirement were based on the RP-2014 White Collar Table, Tables were
adjusted for SURS experience. All tables reflect future mortality improvements using Projection Sale MP-
2014.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period June 30, 2010 to June 30, 2014.

The actuarial valuation was based on the Entry Age Normal cost method. Under this method, the normal
cost and actuarial accrued liability are directly proportional to the employee’s salary. The normal cost rate
equals the present value of future benefits at entry age divided by the present value of future salary at entry
age. The normal cost at the member’s attained age equals the normal cost rate at entry age multiplied by
the salary at attained age. The actuarial accrued liability equals the present value of benefits at attained
age less present value of future salaries at attained age multiplied by normal cost rate at entry age.

Discount Rate: Projected benefit payments were discounted to their actuarial present value using a Single
Discount Rate that reflects (1) a long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments (to the extent
that the plan’s fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to pay benefits), and (2) tax-exempt
municipal bond rate based on an index of 20-year general obligation bond with an average AA credit rating
as of the measurement date (to the extent that the contributions for use with the long-term expected rate of
return are not met). Since CCHISF is financed on a pay-as-you-go basis, a discount rate consistent with
the 20-year general obligation bond index has been selected. The discount rates are 2.85% as of June 30,
2016, and 3.56% as of June 30, 2017, an increase of 0.71%.

During the Plan year ending June 30, 2017, the trust earned $24,000 in interest and due to a significant
benefit payable, the market value of assets at June 30, 2017, is a negative $51 million. Given the significant
benefit payable, negative asset value and pay-as-you-go funding policy, the long-term expected rate of
return assumption was set to zero.

Sensitivity of the College’s proportionate Share of the Collective Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate: The following presents the College’s proportionate share of the collective net OPEB liability,
as well as what the College’s proportionate share of the collective net OPEB liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.56 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher
(4.56 percent) than the current discount rate:

Discount Rate
1% Decrease 3.56% 1% Increase

College's proportionate share
of the collective net OPEB liability $ 23,060,214 $ 20,163,500 $ 17,666,153

(Continued)
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Sensitivity of the College’s Proportionate Share of the Collective Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the
Healthcare Cost Trend Rates: The following presents the College’s proportionate share of the collective net
OPERB liability, as well as what the College’s proportionate share of the collective net OPEB liability would
be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point higher or lower than
the current healthcare cost trend rates. The key trend rates are 8.00% in 2018 decreasing to an ultimate
trend rate of 5.02% in 2025, for non-Medicare coverage, and 9.00% in 2018 decreasing to an ultimate trend
rate of 4.5% in 2027 for Medicare coverage.

Healthcare Cost
1% Decrease Trends Rates 1% Increase
(a) Assumption (b)

College's proportionate share of
the collective net OPEB liability $ 16,727,667 $ 20,163,500 $ 25,135,555

(a) One percentage point decrease in healthcare trend rates are 7.00% in 2018
decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of 4.02% in 2025, for non-Medicare coverage, and
8.00% in 2018 decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of 3.50% in 2027 for Medicare

(b) One percentage point increase in healthcare trend rates are 9.00% in 2018
decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of 6.02% in 2025, for non-Medicare coverage, and
10.00% in 2018 decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of 5.50% in 2027 for Medicare

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position: Detailed information about the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued CCHISF financial report.

NOTE 6 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The College has been named as a party in several lawsuits consisting of termination of College employees,
student injury on campus and worker’s compensation. These lawsuits are currently being adjudicated. The
College, under advice of legal counsel, believes that the defense is based on sound legal ground for all
cases. However, it is reasonably possible that a ruling could be made in favor of the plaintiff. In the case
of an adverse ruling, the College could be liable to the plaintiffs for damages of $0. Under the provisions
of GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-
November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, the College has not accrued this amount in its
financial statements.

NOTE 7 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The College is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; natural disasters; and injuries to the College’s employees. The College's exposure
has not exceeded insurance coverage for the past three years. These risks are provided for through
insurance from private insurance companies. In addition, the College is a defendant in various lawsuits.
Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, in the opinion of the College attorney
the resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial statements of the
College.
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NOTE 8 - RECEIVABLES

Accounts receivable and allowance for uncollectible accounts as of June 30, 2018 consists of the following:

Net
Receivable Allowance Receivable
Taxes receivable:
Property taxes $ 9,920,885 $ 540,781 $ 9,380,104
Personal property replacement taxes 98,556 - 98,556
Total $ 10,019,441 $ 540,781 $ 9,478,660
Other receivables:
Student tuition and fees $ 6,986,073 $ 3,993,485 § 2,992,588
Federal, state and
private grants and contracts 1,710,774 - 1,710,774
Total $ 8696847 § 3,993485 § 4,703,362
NOTE 9 - CAPITAL ASSETS
A summary of changes in the various capital asset categories follows:
Balance Balance
Beginning of Year End of Year
July 1, 2017 Additions Deductions June 30, 2018
Primary Institution:
Capital assets not
being depreciated:
Land $ 1,460,632 $ - $ - $ 1.460,632
Total capital assets not
being depreciated 1,460,632 - - 1,460,632
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and
improvements 47,691,197 342,841 - 48,034,038
Equipment and vehicles 12,354,669 147,235 - 12,501,904
Land improvements
and infrastructure 5,525,995 55,340 - 5,581,335
Total capital assets
being depreciated 65,571,861 545,416 - 66,117,277
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and
improvements (34,169,134) (1,602,413) (35,771,547)
Equipment and vehicles (11,199,293) (508,447) (11,707,740)
Land improvements
and infrastructure (4,442,885) (177,660) - (4,620,545)
Total accumulated
depreciation (49,811,312) (2,288,520) - (52,099,832)
Total capital assets
being depreciated, net 15,760,549 (1,743,104) - 14,017,445
Total capital assets, net $ 17,221,181 $ (1,743104) $ - $ 15,478,077
(Continued)
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NOTE 10 - RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS

Plan Description: The College contributes to SURS, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan
with a special funding situation whereby the State makes substantially all actuarially determined required
contributions on behalf of the participating employers. SURS was established July 21, 1941 to provide
retirement annuities and other benefits for staff members and employees of state universities, certain
affiliated organizations, and certain other state educational and scientific agencies and for survivors,
dependents, and other beneficiaries of such employees. SURS is considered a component unit of the State
of Illinois’ financial reporting entity and is included in the state’s financial reports as a pension trust fund.
SURS is governed by Section 5/15, Chapter 40 of the lllinois Compiled Statutes. SURS issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That
report may be obtained by accessing the website at www.SURS.org.

Benefits Provided: A traditional benefit plan was established in 1941. Public Act 90-0448 enacted effective
January 1, 1998, established an alternative defined benefit program known as the portable benefit package.
The traditional and portable plan Tier 1 refers to members that began participation prior to January 1, 2011.
Public Act 96-0889 revised the traditional and portable benefit plans for members who begin participation
on or after January 1, 2011, and who do not have other eligible lllinois reciprocal system services. The
revised plan is referred to as Tier 2. New employees are allowed 6 months after their date of hire to make
an irrevocable election. A summary of the benefit provisions as of June 30, 2017 (the latest information
available) can be found in the SURS’ comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) Notes to the Financial
Statements.

Contributions: The State is primarily responsible for funding SURS on behalf of the individual employers at
an actuarially determined amount. Public Act 88-0593 provides a Statutory Funding Plan consisting of two
parts: (i) a ramp-up period from 1996 to 2010 and (ii) a period of contributions equal to a level percentage
of the payroll of active members of SURS to reach 90% of the total Actuarial Accrued Liability by the end
of Fiscal Year 2045. Employer contributions from “trust, federal, and other funds” are provided under
Section 15-155(b) of the lllinois Pension Code and require employers to pay contributions which are
sufficient to cover the accruing normal costs on behalf of applicable employees. The employer normal cost
for fiscal year 2017 and 2018 respectively, was 12.53% and 12.46% of employee payroll. The normal cost
is equal to the value of current year's pension benefit and does not include any allocation for the past
unfunded liability or interest on the unfunded liability. Plan members are required to contribute 8.0% of their
annual covered salary. The contribution requirements of plan members and employers are established and
may be amended by the lllinois General Assembly.

Participating employers make contributions toward separately financed specific liabilities under Section
15.139.5(e) of the lllinois Pension Code (relating to contributions payable due to the employment of
“affected annuitants” or specific return to work annuitants) and Section 15.155(g) (relating to contributions
payable due to earning increases exceeding 6% during the final rate of earnings period). There were no
such liabilities for the College at year-end.

Pension Liabilities, Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

Net Pension Liability: At June 30, 2017, SURS reported a net pension liability (NPL) of $25,481,105,995.

(Continued)
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Employer Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability: The amount of the proportionate share of the net
pension liability to be recognized for the College is $0, as the State of lllinois has ownership of the liability
per statute. The proportionate share of the State’s net pension liability associated with the College is
$135,712,371 or 0.5326%. This amount is not recognized in the financial statements. The net pension
liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension used to calculate the net pension liability
was determined based on the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuation rolled forward. The basis of allocation used
in the proportionate share of the net pension liability is the actual reported employee contributions made to
SURS during fiscal year 2017.

Pension Expense: At June 30, 2017 SURS reported a collective net pension expense of $2,412,918,129.

Employer Proportionate Share of Pension Expense: The employer proportionate share of collective
pension expense is recognized as on-behalf payments as both revenue and matching expenditure in the
financial statements. The basis of allocation used in the proportionate share of collective pension expense
is the actual reported employee contributions made to SURS during fiscal year 2017. As a result, the
College recognized on-behalf revenue and pension expense of $12,947,985 for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2018.

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions: Deferred
outflows of resources are the consumption of net position by SURS that is applicable to future reporting
periods.

SURS Collective Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources by Sources

Deferred Outflow Deferred Inflow

of Resources of Resources
Difference between expected
and actual experience $ 139,193,227 $ 1,170,771
Change in assumption 205,004,315 259,657,577

Net difference between projected
and actual earnings on pension
plan investments 94,620,827 -

$ 438,818,369 $ 260,828,348
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COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NO. 510
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2018

NOTE 10 - RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS (Continued)

SURS Collective Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources by Year to be Recognized in
Future Pension Expenses

Year Ending Net Deferred

June 30 Qutflow of Resources
2018 $ 55,589,850
2019 187,874,276
2020 90,475,551

2021 (155,949,656)
2022 -
Thereafter -
$ 177,990,021

Employer Deferral of Fiscal Year 2018 Pension Expense

The College paid $93,597 in federal, trust or grant contributions for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.
These contributions were made subsequent to the pension liability date of June 30, 2017 and but due to
their immaterial nature are not recognized as Deferred Outflows of Resources as of June 30, 2018.

Assumptions and Other Inputs

Actuarial assumptions: The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period June 30, 2010 — 2014. The total pension liability in
the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to
all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.75 percent
Salary increases 3.75 to 15.00 percent, including inflation
Investment rate of return 7.25 percent beginning with the actuarial valuation as of

June 30, 2014

Mortality rates were based on the RP2014 Combined Mortality Table with projected generational mortality
and a separate mortality assumption for disabled participants.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges
are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of
arithmetic real rates of return were adopted by the plan’s trustees after considering input from the plan’s
investment consultant(s) and actuary(s). For each major asset class that is included in the pension plan’s
target asset allocation as of June 30, 2017, these best estimates are summarized in the following table:

(Continued)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2018

NOTE 10 - RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS (Continued)

Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Target Allocation Real Rate of Return
U.S. Equity 23% 6.08%
Private Equity 6% 8.73%
Non-U.S. Equity 19% 7.34%
Global Equity 8% 6.85%
Fixed Income 19% 1.38%
Treasury-Inflation Protected Securities 4% 1.17%
Emerging Market Debt 3% 4.14%
Real Estate REITS 4% 5.75%
Direct Real Estate 6% 4.62%
Commodities 2% 4.23%
Hedged Strategies 5% 3.95%
Opportunity Fund 1% 6.71%
Total 100% 5.20%
Inflation 2.75%
Expected Arithmetic Return 7.95%

Discount Rate: A single discount rate of 7.090%, which is an increase of 0.080% from the prior year rate of
return of 7.010%, was used to measure the total pension liability. This single discount rate was based on
an expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.25% and a municipal bond rate of 3.56%
(based on the weekly rate closest to but not later than the measurement date of the 20-Year Bond Buyer
Index as published by the Federal Reserve). The projection of cash flows used to determine this single
discount rate were the amounts of contributions attributable to current plan members and assumed that
plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer contributions will
be made at rates equal to the statutory contribution rates under the SURS’s funding policy. Based on these
assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position and future contributions were sufficient to finance the
benefit payments through the year 2073. As a result, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to projected benefit payments through the year 2073, and the municipal bond rate
was applied to all benefit payments after that date.

Sensitivity of the SURS’s Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate. Regarding the sensitivity
of the net pension liability to changes in the single discount rate, the following presents the plan’s net
pension liability, calculated using a single discount rate of 7.090%, as well as what the plan’s net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a single discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1
percentage point higher:

Current Single Discount
1% Decrease Rate Assumption 1% Increase
6.09% 7.09% 8.09%
$30,885,146,279 $ 25,481,105,995 $20,997,457,586

Additional information regarding the SURS basic financial statements including the Plan Net Position can
be found in the SURS comprehensive annual financial report by accessing the website at www.SURS.org.

(Continued)
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NOTE 10 - RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS (Continued)

Retirement Incentive Liability: The College has early retirement programs with a number of its employee
groups. Participants in four of these programs may receive payments for up to five years after accepting
the plan. Benefits are measured based on years of service and salary and are contractually structured
along the duration of the contract. No discount methods are used for the calculation of this liability. As of
June 30, 2018, the College was contractually obligated to pay $1,412,762 over the next five years under
these programs.

NOTE 11 — TAX ABATEMENTS

Tax abatements are a reduction in tax revenues that results from an agreement between one or more
governments and an individual or entity in which (a) one or more governments promise to forgo tax
revenues to which they are otherwise entitled and (b) the individual or entity promises to take a specific
action after the agreement has been entered into that contributes to economic development or otherwise
benefits the governments or the citizens of those governments.

The College is affected by Cook County’s Class 6b property tax incentive program. The purpose of the
Class 6b program is to encourage industrial development throughout Cook County by offering a real estate
tax incentive for the development of new industrial facilities, the rehabilitation of existing industrial
structures, and the industrial reutilization of abandoned buildings. The goal of the program is to attract new
industry, stimulate expansion and retention of existing industry, and increase employment opportunities.

Properties receiving a Class 6b incentive are assessed at 10% of market value for the first 10 years, 15%
in the 11th year, and 20% in the 12th year. This constitutes a substantial reduction in the level of
assessment and results in significant tax savings. In the absence of this incentive, industrial real estate
would normally be assessed at 25% of its market value. Municipalities within the College area have granted
Class 6b incentives to businesses that, as a result, have occupied abandoned properties, constructed new
buildings, or expanded existing facilities. In many instances, the program has produced more property tax
revenue for the College and the other impacted taxing districts than would have been generated if the
development had not occurred. The College’s tax revenues are reduced due to the agreements entered
into by these municipalities.

For the fiscal years ending June 30, 2018, the College’s share of the abatement granted to the Class 6b
properties was approximately $348,496.

NOTE 12 - NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In November 2016, the GASB issued Statement 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations. This Statement
addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain asset retirement obligations (AROs) and
establishes criteria for determining the timing and pattern of recognition of a liability and a corresponding
deferred outflow of resources for AROs. This Statement is effective for the College’s fiscal year ended
June 30, 2019. Management has not determined what impact, if any, this statement will have on its financial
statements.

(Continued)
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NOTE 12 - NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS (Continued)

In January 2017, the GASB issued Statement 84, Fiduciary Activities. The objective of this Statement is to
improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting
purposes and how those activities should be reported. This Statement establishes criteria for identifying
fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a
government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary
relationship exists. Separate criteria are included to identify fiduciary component units and postemployment
benefit arrangements that are fiduciary activities. This Statement is effective for the College’s fiscal year
ended June 30, 2020. Management has not determined what impact, if any, this statement will have on its
financial statements.

In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement 87, Leases. The objective of this Statement is to better meet
the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for
leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements by
requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as
operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment
provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational
principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. This Statement is effective for
the College’s fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. Management has not determined what impact, if any, this
statement will have on its financial statements.

In April 2018, the GASB issued Statement 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct
Borrowings and Direct Placements. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve the information
that is disclosed in notes to government financial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings
and direct placements. It also clarifies which liabilities governments should include when disclosing
information related to debt. This Statement defines debt for purposes of disclosure in notes to financial
statements as a liability that arises from a contractual obligation to pay cash (or other assets that may be
used in lieu of cash) in one or more payments to settle an amount that is fixed at the date the contractual
obligation is established. This Statement requires that additional essential information related to debt be
disclosed in notes to financial statements, including unused lines of credit; assets pledged as collateral for
the debt; and terms specified in debt agreements related to significant events of default with finance-related
consequences, significant termination events with finance-related consequences, and significant subjective
acceleration clauses. This Statement is effective for the College’s fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.
Management has not determined what impact, if any, this statement will have on its financial statements.

In June 2018, the GASB issued Statement 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the End of a
Construction Period. The objectives of this Statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and comparability
of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2) to simplify
accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. This Statement establishes
accounting requirements for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. Such interest
cost includes all interest that previously was accounted for in accordance with the requirements of
paragraphs 5-22 of Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance
Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, which are superseded by this
Statement. This Statement requires that interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period be
recognized as an expense in the period in which the cost is incurred for financial statements prepared using
the economic resources measurement focus. As a result, interest cost incurred before the end of a
construction period will not be included in the historical cost of a capital asset reported in a business-type
activity or enterprise fund. This Statement is effective for the College’s fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.
Management has not determined what impact, if any, this statement will have on its financial statements.

(Continued)
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NOTE 13 —STATE OF ILLINOIS REVENUE RECOGNITION

On July 6, 2017, the State of lllinois General Assembly passed Public Act 100-0021, authorizing several
appropriations for costs incurred through June 30, 2017. The College recognized these amounts as
revenues in its fiscal year 2018 due to the fact that the appropriations did not exist at the date of these
financial statements. The amounts recognized as revenue in fiscal year 2018 are:

Base Operating Grant $ 1,479,669
Equalization Grant 2,043,744
Federal Basic Grant 394,999
State Basic Grant 497,000
State Performance Grant 140,295
Total $ 4,555,707

NOTE 14 — CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE

In June 2015, the GASB issued Statement 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment
Benefits Other Than Pensions. This Statement replaces the requirements of Statement 45 and requires
governments to report a liability on the face of the financial statements for the OPEB that they provide.
Statement 75 requires governments in all types of OPEB plans to present more extensive note disclosures
and required supplementary information (RSI) about their OPEB liabilities. Among the new note disclosures
is a description of the effect on the reported OPEB liability of using a discount rate and a healthcare cost
trend rate that are one percentage point higher and one percentage point lower than assumed by the
government. The new RSI includes a schedule showing the causes of increases and decreases in the
OPEB liability and a schedule comparing a government’s actual OPEB contributions to its contribution
requirements. This Statement is effective for the College’s fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. A specific
change to the College’s financial statements relates to the recognition of the College’s OPEB Liabilities and
related Deferred Inflows of Resources and Deferred Outflows of Resources with a net value of $20,361,459
that was not previously reported on the financial statements. Due to the requirements of GASB 75, these
amounts are now required to be included on the College’s financial statements and thus were added to the
financial statements as an adjustment to net position. A reconciliation for net position from the 2017
financial statements to beginning net position as reported on the 2018 financial statements is as follows.

Previously reported net position as of June 30, 2017 $ 9,601,299

Net position restatements from State of lllinois CCHISF Plan

Deferred outflow of resources - contributions made after measurement date 95,925
Net OPEB liability beginning of year (20,457,384)
Net position as of July 1, 2017 as restated $ (10,760,160)

See Note 5 for more information.
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SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NO. 510
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SURS
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Last Fiscal Year
(UNAUDITED)

Changes of benefit terms: There were no benefit changes recognized in the Total Pension Liability as of
June 30, 2017.

Changes of assumptions: In accordance with lllinois Compiled Statutes, an actuarial review is to be
performed at least once every three years to determine the reasonableness of actuarial assumptions
regarding the retirement, disability, mortality, turnover, interest and salary of the members and benefit
recipients of SURS. An experience review for the years June 30, 2010 to June 30, 2014 was performed in
February 2015, resulting in the adoption of new assumptions as of June 30, 2015.

Mortality rates - Change from the RP 2000 Mortality table projected to 2017, sex distinct, to the RP-
2014 mortality tables with projected generational mortality improvement. Change to a separate
mortality assumption for disabled participants.

Salary increase - Change assumption to service-based rates, ranging from 3.75 percent to 15.00
percent based on years of service, with underlying wage inflation of 3.75 percent.

Normal retirement rates - Change to retirement rates at ages younger than 60, age 66, and ages 70-79
to reflect observed experiences.

Early retirement rates - Change to a slight increase to the rates at ages 55 and 56.

Turnover rates - Change to produce lower expected turnover for members with less than 10 years of
service and higher turnover for members with more than 10 years of service than the currently
assumed rates.

Disability rates - Decrease rates and have separate rates for males and females to reflect observed
experience.

Dependent assumption- Change the current assumption on marital status that varies by age and sex
and the assumption that males are three years older than their spouses.
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SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NO. 510
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
CCHISF
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Last Fiscal Year
(UNAUDITED)

Changes of benefit terms: There were no benefit changes recognized in the Total OPEB Liability as of
June 30, 2017.

Changes of assumptions: In accordance with lllinois Compiled Statutes, an actuarial review is to be
performed at least once every three years to determine the reasonableness of actuarial assumptions
regarding the retirement, disability, mortality, turnover, interest and salary of the members and benefit
recipients of SURS. An experience review for the years June 30, 2010 to June 30, 2014 was performed in
February 2015, resulting in the adoption of new assumptions as of June 30, 2015.

- The discount rate was changed from 4.50 percent to 2.85 percent at June 30, 2016, and 3.56
percent at June 30, 2017

- The healthcare trend assumption was updated based on claim and enroliment experience through
June 30, 2016, projected plan cost for plan year end June 30, 2017, premium changes through plan
year end 2018, and expectation of future trend increases after June 30, 2017

- The Excise Tax trend adjustment was updated based on available premium and enrollment
information as of June 30, 2017

- Per capita claim costs for plan year end June 30, 2017, were updated based on projected claims
and enrollment experience through June 30, 2017, and updated premium rates through plan year
2018

- The morbidity factors, used to adjust per capita claim cost by age and gender, were updated

- Healthcare plan participation rates by plan were updated based on observed experience
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EXHIBIT 2
SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NO. 510
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES FOR TORT IMMUNITY PURPOSES (UNAUDITED)

Year Ended June 30, 2018

Salaries $ -
Employee benefits 415,995
Material and supplies 139,228
Contractual services 98,791
Fixed charges 499,894

Total tort immunity purposes expenditures $ 1,153,908

The College levies property taxes for tort immunity/liability insurance purposes. As required by Public Act
91-0628 passed by the lllinois General Assembly, the College is including the above list of tort immunity
purposes expenditures in its annual financial report.

The College’s tax extension for liability insurance purposes for tax year 2017 as levied by Cook County is
$1,381,807. Any shortfall to cover expenditures in excess of taxes collected is derived from other general
fund revenues of the College. Any excess of revenues over expenditures is carried forward to subsequent
years subject to a statutory formula.
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STATISTICAL SECTION

South Suburban College Community College District No. 510 presents detailed information as a context for
understanding what the information in the financial statements and note disclosures says about the
College’s overall financial health.

Tables
Financial Trends These schedules contain trend information 1-2
to help the reader understand how the
College’s financial performance and well-being
have changed over time.
Revenue Capacity These schedules present information to help the 3-8
reader assess the College’s significant revenue
sources.
Debt Capacity These schedules present information to help the 9-11

reader assess the affordability of the College’s
current levels of outstanding debt and the College’s
ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographics and Economic
Information These schedules offer demographic and economic 12-15
indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within the College’s financial activities
take place.

Operating Information These schedules contain service and infrastructure 16-18
data to help the reader understand how the
information in the College’s financial report relates
to the services the College provides and the activities
it performs.
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SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE

COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NUMBER 510
Revenue Capacity
Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property (Unaudited)

Table 3

Levy
Year

2017
2016
2015
2014
2013
2012
2011
2010
2009
2008

Information regarding assessed values of varous property types (residential, commercial, etc) is not available.

Data Sources:

Total Taxable
Assessed
Value

Total
Direct
Tax
Rate

2,997,805,050 $

2,985,543,407
2,974,237,204
3,109,474,542
3,336,752,258
3,681,325,985
4,519,956,088
4,569,947,896
4,558,628,650
4,167,399,431

0.5774 §
0.6068
0.6202
0.5990
0.5590
0.5105
0.4497
0.3658
0.3473
0.3456

Estimated

Actual

Assessed

Value

9,084,257,727
9,047,101,233
9,012,840,012
9,422,650,127
10,111,370,479
11,1565,533,288
13,696,836,630
13,848,326,958
13,814,026,212
12,628,483,124

Taxable Assessed
Value vs Estimated
Actual Assessed

Value

Offices of the County Clerk for Cook County; Cook County comprises 100% of South Suburban College District #510.

33%
33%
33%
33%
33%
33%
33%
33%
33%
33%

49.
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SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NO. 510 Table 10
Computation of Direct and Overlapping General Obligation Bonded Debt (Unaudited)
June 30, 2018

Outstanding Applicable to District

Overlapping Districts: Bonds Percentage Amount
Cook County $3,085,186,750 (2) 2.103% $ 64,881,477
Cook County Forest Preserve 150,960,000 2.103% 3,174,689
Metropolitan Water Reclamation District 2,480,560,091 (1) 2.143% 53,158,403
Municipalities:
Blue Island 884,189 (2) 3.991% 35,288
Calumet City 47,745,000 100.000% 47,745,000
Country Club Hills 42,200,000 59.545% 25,127,990
Dolton 23,719,000 100.000% 23,719,000
East Hazel Crest 365,000 100.000% 365,000
Harvey 33,244,865 100.000% 33,244,865
Hazel Crest 10,285,000 77.897% 8,011,706
Homewood 1,145,000 1.061% 12,148
Lansing 12,780,000 99.562% 12,724,024
Lynwood 370,000 (2) 46.701% 172,794
Markham 33,299,887 100.000% 33,299,887
Midlothian 9,407,161 (2) 98.041% 9,222,875
Oak Forest 25,860,000 84.287% 21,796,618
Posen 1,065,000 99.971% 1,064,691
Riverdale 13,180,000 (2) 100.000% 13,180,000
Robbins 323,437 (2) 0.086% 278
South Holland 14,496,699 (3) 100.000% 14,496,699
Thornton 2,370,000 93.715% 2,221,046
Tinley Park 18,275,000 18.830% 3,441,183
Libraries:
Harvey 5,785,000 100.000% 5,785,000
Parks:
Blue Island 157,495 4.227% 6,657
Calumet Memorial 2,350,000 100.000% 2,350,000
Country Club Hills 586,890 (2) 59.433% 348,806
Dolton 694,450 100.000% 694,450
Harvey 450,000 100.000% 450,000
Hazel Crest 760,000 (2) 77.897% 592,017
Homewood Flossmoor 1,009,905 (2) 0.632% 6,383
Lan Oak 406,180 (2) 99.559% 404,389
Markham 83,840 100.000% 83,840
Midlothian 165,000 98.041% 161,768
Oak Forest 2,170,000 91.265% 1,980,451
Riverdale 136,375 100.000% 136,375
Robbins 115,290 0.084% 97
Tinley Park 5,206,000 21.101% 1,098,518
School Districts:
132 3,179,000 4.783% 152,052
133 875,000 100.000% 875,000
142 6,560,193 (3) 85.696% 5,621,823
143 4,145,000 68.322% 2,831,947
143 1/2 16,015,000 61.497% 9,848,745
144 57,368,077 (3) 100.000% 57,368,077
145 26,296,204 (3) 100.000% 26,296,204
146 14,360,000 48.687% 6,991,453
147 5,690,000 (2) 100.000% 5,690,000
148 24,862,840 (3)(4) 100.000% 24,862,840
149 14,264,469 (2)(3) 100.000% 14,264,469
150 3,305,000 100.000% 3,305,000
151 14,030,000 100.000% 14,030,000
152 1,600,000 100.000% 1,600,000
152112 5,662,775 (3) 100.000% 5,562,775
154 1,489,000 100.000% 1,489,000
154 112 1,958,020 (2) 100.000% 1,958,020
155 26,688,873 (3) 100.000% 26,688,873
156 6,610,000 100.000% 6,610,000
157 22,111,733 (3) 100.000% 22,111,733
158 21,615,000 (2) 100.000% 21,615,000
160 13,826,621 (3) 43.917% 6,072,237
161 6,035,000 1.159% 69,946
171 4,623,291 94.017% 4,346,679
High School Districts:

50,500,000 (2) 100.000% 50,500,000
215 14,725,000 (2) 100.000% 14,725,000
228 54,705,000 97.166% 53,154,660
Special Service Areas:
Calumet City #1998-1 160,000 100.000% 160,000
Total Overlapping General Obligation Bonded Debt 773,995,945
Direct Debt
South Suburban Community College 510 26,561,288 (3) 100.000% 26,561,288

Total Direct and Overlapping General Obligation Bonded Debt $ 800,557,233

(1) Includes IEPA Revolving Loan Fund Bonds.
(2) Excludes principal amounts of outstanding General Obligation Alternate Revenue Source Bonds
which are expected to be paid from sources other than general taxation. Also excludes other self-supporting bonds.
(3) Includes original principal amounts of outstanding General Obligation Capital Appreciation Bonds
(4) Excludes notes, bank loans and lease or purchase agreements.

The information above was computed by taking the percentage of the overlapping entities' equalized assess valuation as
compared to the District's boundaries and computing a percentage of the total general bonded debt of the overlapping
entities that overlap within the District's boundaries.

Sources: Offices of the Cook County Clerk, Comptroller, and Treasurer of the Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of
Chicago
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SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NO. 510
District Demographics (Unaudited)

Table 15

COMMUNITIES SERVED:

Blue Island (part) Dolton

Burnham East Hazel Crest

Calumet City Harvey

Country Club Hills (part) Hazel Crest (part)

Crestwood Homewood(part)

Dixmoor Lansing
POPULATION:

Total Population in 2016 was 377,321
Estimated population forecast for 2040 is 446,976

DEMOGRAPHICS:
Per capita income in 2016 was $24,081
Personal income in 2016 was $450,346,384
Median age of population is 37.5
Unemployment rate in 2017 was 7.9%

14.1 percent of population is Hispanic

37.0 percent of population is White

46.1 percent of population is African American
0.1 percent of population is American Indian
1.2 percent of population is Asian

1.3 percent of population is two or more races
0.0 percent of population is Pacific Islander
0.2 percent of population is other

Total number of households in 2015 was 131,800
Household forecast for 2040 is 161,649
Total number of housing units in the district is 141,029

SSC DEMOGRAPHICS:

Total Undergrads (Percent) Fall 2018

Under 18 24.70%
18-19 17.90%
20-21 14.70%
22-24 10.40%
25-29 10.00%
30-34 5.50%
35-39 4.20%
40-49 5.60%
50-64 5.10%
65 and Over 1.90%
Total 100.00%

Median age of enrollment is 23

Lynwood (part)
Markham
Midlothian (part)
Oak Forest (part)
Phoenix

Posen

Total Enroliment

African-American
American Indian
Asian/P.1
Hawaiian/Pacific Islander
Hispanic

White

Two or More Races
Unknown

Total

Source: Northeastern lllinois Planning Commission, 2000 Census Data, city-data.com

Riverdale (part)
South Holland
Thornton

Tinley Park (part)

Fall 2018
Number  Percent
2,407 54.8%
22 0.5%
65 1.5%
12 0.3%
904 20.6%
826 18.8%
103 2.3%
54 1.1%

4,393 99.9%
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Table 16

SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NO. 510
Operating Information
Capital Asset Statistics - Volume (Unaudited)

sq ft. (gross

Year Built Building Name floor area

1971 Main campus 492,844

1976 Gym/field house 31,389

1991 UcCcC 72,274

1989 Maintenance shed 9,600
606,107

Rented Facilities College Center One 5,457
611,564

Source: College records
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SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #510

SUMMARY OF CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT
UNIFORM FINANCIAL STATEMENT #2

Year Ended June 30, 2018

July 1, 2017 Additions Deletions June 30, 2018
Capital assets
Land $ 1,460,632 $ - $ - $ 1,460,632
Land improvements 5,525,995 55,340 - 5,681,335
Buildings and improvements 47,691,197 342,841 - 48,034,038
Equipment and vehicles 12,354,669 147,235 - 12,501,904
Total capital assets 67,032,493 545,416 - 67,577,909
Accumulated depreciation 49,811,312 2,288,520 - 52,099,832
Total capital assets $ 17,221,181 $ (1,743,104) $ - $ 15,478,077
Debt
Bonds payable $ 27,362,287 $ 1,309,001 * $ 2,110,000 $ 26,561,288
Other liabilities 23,135,082 422,930 914,045 22,643,967
Total debt $ 50,497,369 $ 1,731,931 $ 3,024,045 $ 49,205,255

* - This amount represents accretion of interest

Note: This statement is prepared under the regulatory basis proscribed by the lllinois Community College Board, which
varies from accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP,
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SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE

COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #510

Year Ended June 30, 2018

OPERATING FUNDS REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
UNIFORM FINANCIAL STATEMENT #3

OPERATING REVENUES BY SOURCE

Local government revenue:
Local taxes
Chargeback revenue
Capital lease proceeds
PPRT

TOTAL LOCAL GOVERNMENT

State government:
ICCB credit hours grants
ICCB equalized grants
ICCB vocalization grants
Other

TOTAL STATE GOVERNMENT

Federal government:
Dept. of education

TOTAL FEDERAL GOVERNMENT

Student tuition and fees:
Tuition
Fees

TOTAL TUITION AND FEES

Other sources:
Facilities revenue
Investment revenue
Other

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE

TOTAL REVENUE

Less: nonoperating items*
Capital lease proceeds

Tuition chargeback revenue

ADJUSTED REVENUES

Operations and Total
Education Maintenance Operating
Fund Fund Funds
$ 9,863,346 $ 2,656,009 $ 12,519,355
249,892 249,892 499,784
10,113,238 2,905,901 13,019,139
1,034,981 1,034,983 2,069,964
960,500 - 960,500
214,070 - 214,070
2,209,551 1,034,983 3,244,534
14,977 - 14,977
14,977 - 14,977
10,173,792 - 10,173,792
1,204,887 - 1,204,887
11,378,679 - 11,378,679
1,290,674 - 1,290,674
223,651 2 223,653
5,796 3,409 9,205
1,520,121 3,411 1,523,532
25,236,566 3,944,295 29,180,861
$ 25,236,566 $ 3,944,295 $ 29,180,861

* Intercollege revenue that does not generate related local college credit hours are subtracted to allow for statewide companions.

Note: This statement is prepared under the regulatory basis proscribed by the lllinois Community College Board, which varies from
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP)

(Continued)
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SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE

COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #510

OPERATING FUNDS REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
UNIFORM FINANCIAL STATEMENT #3
Year Ended June 30, 2018

(Continued)
Operations
and Total
Education Maintenance Operating
Fund Fund Funds
OPERATING EXPENDITURES
BY PROGRAM

Instruction $ 13,689,776 $ - $ 13,689,776

Academic support 790,313 - 790,313

Student services 3,326,698 - 3,326,698

Public service/continuing education 705,128 - 705,128

General administration 2,582,328 - 2,582,328

Operations and maintenance 38,944 4,494,856 4,533,800

Institutional support 2,262,424 145,034 2,407,458

Auxiliary services 4,952 - 4,952

Scholarships, grants and waivers 2,593,805 - 2,593,805
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 25,994,368 4,639,890 30,634,258
Less nonoperating items*

Tuition chargeback - - -
ADJUSTED EXPENDITURES 25,994,368 4,639,890 30,634,258
BY OBJECT

Salaries 16,443,016 2,361,008 18,804,024

Employee benefits 3,558,731 554,295 4,113,026

Contractual services 1,725,813 123,212 1,849,025

General materials and supplies 1,286,797 772,435 2,059,232

Travel and conference/meeting expenses 113,502 - 113,502

Fixed charges 148,867 6,250 155,117

Utilities 123,837 822,690 946,527

Capital outlay - - -

Student grants and scholarships 2,593,805 - 2,593,805
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 25,994,368 4,639,890 30,634,258
Less nonoperating items*

Tuition chargeback - - -
ADJUSTED EXPENDITURES $ 25,994,368 $ 4,639,890 $ 30,634,258

* Intercollege revenues that do not generate related college credit hours are subtracted to allow

for statewide companions
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SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #510

RESTRICTED PURPOSES FUND REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
UNIFORM FINANCIAL STATEMENT #4
Year Ended June 30, 2018

REVENUE BY SOURCE:

TOTAL LOCAL GOVERNMENT

State government:
ICCB - adult education
ICCB - other
Illinois student assistance commission
SURS - on behalf
Other

TOTAL STATE GOVERNMENT

Federal Government:
Department of Education
Department of Labor
Other

TOTAL FEDERAL GOVERNMENT

Other sources:
Tuition and fees
Other

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES
TOTAL RESTRICTED PURPOSES FUND REVENUES

EXPENDITURES BY PROGRAM
Instruction
Academic support
Student services
Public service/continuing education
Auxilary services
General administration
Operations and maintenance
Institutional support

TOTAL RESTRICTED PURPOSES FUND EXPENDITURES

EXPENDITURES BY OBJECT
Salaries
Employee benefits
Contractual services
General materials and supplies
Travel and conference/meeting expenses
Fixed charges
Utilities
Capital outlay
Other (Student financial aid)

TOTAL RESTRICTED PURPOSES FUND EXPENDITURES

Restricted
Purposes Fund

522,413

12,947,985
77,404

13,547,802

9,821,710
450,317
766,515

11,038,542

577,431
3,097

580,528

$ 25,166,872

$ 7,938,815
349,950

10,670,479

2,869,936

1,534,706

929,728

1,340,353

362,166

$ 25,996,133

$ 2,155,246
13,330,836

464,458

1,400,126

146,810

12,600
8,486,057

$ 25,996,133

Note: This statement is prepared under the regulatory basis proscribed by the lllinois Community College Board, which varies from

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP’
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SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #510

UNIFORM FINANCIAL STATEMENT #5
CURRENT FUNDS* EXPENDITURES BY ACTIVITY
Year Ended June 30, 2018

INSTRUCTION
Instructional programs $ 17,617,419
Other 4,011,172
Total instruction 21,628,591
ACADEMIC SUPPORT
Library center 881,331
Educational media services -
Academic computing support 258,932
Total academic support 1,140,263
STUDENT SERVICES
Admissions and records 2,491,715
Counseling and career services 1,179,697
Financial aid administration 461,911
Other 9,863,854
Total student services 13,997,177
PUBLIC SERVICE/CONTINUING EDUCATION
Customized training (Instructional) 3,443,750
Other 131,314
Total public service/continuing education 3,575,064
ORGANIZED RESEARCH -
AUXILIARY SERVICES 4,035,067
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE OF PLANT
Maintenance 2,640,359
Custodial services 1,291,549
Grounds 73,336
Campus security 1,235,228
Utilities 696,540
Total operations and maintenance of plant 5,937,012
INSTITUTIONAL SUPPORT
Executive management 1,194,277
Fiscal operations 836,243
Community relations 277,746
Administrative support services 254,901
Board of trustees 122,160
General institutional 4,050,440
Institutional research 220,243
Administrative data processing 481,675
Other 34,769
Total institutional support 7,472,454
SCHOLARSHIPS, STUDENT GRANTS, AND WAIVERS 2,593,805
TOTAL CURRENT FUNDS EXPENDITURES $ 60,379,433

* Current Funds include the Education; Operations and Maintenance; Auxiliary Enterprise; Restricted Purposes; Audit;

Liability, Protection Settlement.

Note: This statement is prepared under the regulatory basis proscribed by the lllinois Community College Board, which

varies from accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP)
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SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #510
Certification of Charge-back Reimbursement (Unaudited)

Fiscal Year 2019

All fiscal year 2018 noncapital audited operating expenditures from the

following funds:
1. Education Fund
Operations and Maintenance Fund
Operations and Maintenance Fund (Restricted)
Bond and Interest Fund
Public Building Commission Rental Fund
Restricted Purposes Fund
Audit Fund
Liability, Protection, and Settlement Fund
Auxiliary Enterprise Fund (Subsidy Only)
Total noncapital audited expenditures
Plus depreciation on capital outlay expenditures
(equipment, building, and fixed equipment paid)
from sources other than state and federal funds
12. Total costs included
13. Total certified semester credit hours for FY 2018
14. Per capita cost
15. All FY 2018 state and federal operating grants for
noncapital expenditures, except ICCB grants

O Ne oS WN

- -
- O

16. Less FY 2018 state and federal grants per semester credit hour
17. Less each district's average ICCB grant rate for fiscal year 2019

18. Less each district’'s student tuition per semester
credit hour for fiscal year 2019

19. ck reimbursement per semester credit hour

Approved:

25,994,368
4,639,890
194,831
2,110,000

13,035,548
99,725
1,153,908

47,228,270

2,288,520

49,516,790
69,122.50
716.36

10,179,655

147.27
28.35

152.00
388.74

Date

Y g/g

Approved: -

"‘—/Chieffjejive Officer / ~
( (

Date

Ll i
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Crowe

Crowe LLP
Indepapdeit Member Crowe Global

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Trustees
South Suburban College —

Community College District Number 510
South Holland, lllinois

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the South Suburban College — Community
College District No. 510 (the College) State Adult Education (State Basic, Public Assistance, and
Performance, schedules 1 and 2), and Career and Technical Education — Program Improvement
(schedules 4 and 5) (Grant Programs), and the related notes to the financial statements, as of June 30,
2018 and for the year then ended, which collectively comprise the Grant Programs’ financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States and the guidelines of the lllinois Community College Board
Fiscal Management Manual. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the College’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the College’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

(Continued)
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the College’s Grant Programs as of June 30, 2018, and the respective
changes in its financial position for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the Grant Programs and do not purport to,
and do not, present fairly the financial position of the College as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in its
financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Supplementary information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Grant Programs’ financial statements. The supplementary information in schedule 3 is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements.

The supplementary information in schedule 3 is the responsibility of management and was derived from
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary
information in schedule 3 is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as
a whole.

Report of Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated October 25,
2018 on our consideration of the College’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the College’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Ctoure LLY
Crowe LLP

Oak Brook, lllinois
October 25, 2018
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Crowe

Crowe LLP
Indepandei Membear Crowe Global

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF GRANT PROGRAM FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Trustees

South Suburban College-

Community College District Number 510
South Holland, lllinois

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and the guidelines of the lllinois Community
College Board Fiscal Management Manual, the financial statements of the South Suburban College —
Community College District No. 510 (the College) State Adult Education (State Basic, Public Assistance,
and Performance) and Career and Technical Education — Program Improvement (Grant Programs) as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Grant Programs’ financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October
25, 2018.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the College's internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) of the Grant Programs to determine the audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the Grant Programs’ financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely
basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in internal control that is
less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph in this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might
be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

(Continued)
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether these financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

This purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the College’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit

performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the College’s internal
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Coroure LLY
Crowe LLP

Oak Brook, lllinois
October 25, 2018
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SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #510

ICCB COMPLIANCE STATEMENT FOR THE
STATE ADULT EDUCATION GRANT PROGRAM

SCHEDULE 3

EXPENDITURES AMOUNTS AND PERCENTAGES FOR ICCB GRANT FUNDS ONLY

Year Ended June 30, 2018

State Basic Actual Expenditure Amount Actual Expenditure Percentage
Instruction (45% minimum

required) $ 601,657 63.4%
General administration (15%

maximum allowed) 108,434 11.4%

State Public Assistance

Actual Expenditure Amount

Actual Expenditure Percentage

Instruction (45% minimum

required) $ - 0.0%
General administration (15%
Maximum allowed) - 0.0%
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SCHEDULE 4
SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE

COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #510

CAREER AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION - PROGRAM IMPROVEMENT GRANT PROGRAM

BALANCE SHEET
June 30, 2018

ASSETS
Accounts receivable $ 21,407
Total assets $ 21,407

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCE

LIABILITIES
Due to other College funds $ 21,407
Total liabilities 21,407

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable grants 21,407

Total deferred inflows of resources 21,407

FUND BALANCE
Fund balance - unassigned (21,407)

Total fund balance (21,407)

Total liabilities, deferred inflows or
resources and fund balance $ 21,407

See accompanying notes to ICCB State Grants financial statements
80.



SCHEDULE 5
SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE

COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #510
CAREER AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION - PROGRAM IMPROVEMENT GRANT PROGRAM

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Revenue
State sources $ 23,506

Expenditures
Travel 21,486

Total expenditures 21,486

Excess of revenue over (under)

expenditures 2,020
Fund balance July 1, 2017 (23,427)
Fund balance June 30, 2018 $ (21,407)

See accompanying notes to ICCB State Grants financial statements 81.



SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #510
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General: The accompanying statements include only those transactions resulting from the ICCB State
Adult Education and Career and Technical Education-Program Improvement grants programs.
Accordingly, due to the omission of government-wide financial statements and related disclosures,
including a management’s discussion and analysis, these financial statements do not constitute a
complete presentation of the financial position of the College as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in its
financial position and where applicable, cash flows thereof, for the year then ended. The above
referenced transactions have been accounted for in a Restricted Purposes Fund.

Basis of Accounting: The statements have been prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Expenditures include all accounts payable representing liabilities for goods and services actually received
as of June 30, 2018. Funds obligated for goods prior to June 30 for which the goods are received prior to
August 31 are recorded as encumbrances. Unexpended funds are reflected as a reduction to fund
balance and a liability due to the ICCB by October 15.

Deferred Inflows of Resources: State basic and performance revenue have been deferred in the fund
statements because the funding was not received within 60 days of year-end. The revenue pertains to the
State’s fiscal year 2018 but is not recognized as revenue at the fund level for the College because it is
unavailable.

NOTE 2 - ENCUMBRANCES

Current year encumbrances for goods and services obligated before June 30, 2018 are reflected as
unearned revenue while payments for prior year encumbrances for goods received prior to August 31,
2018 are reflected as expenditures of the current fiscal year.
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Crowe LLP
Indapapdenl Membear Crowe Globsl

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT

The Board of Trustees

South Suburban College —
Community College District No. 510
South Holland, lllinois

We have examined the accompanying Schedule of Enrollment Data and Other Bases Upon Which
Claims Were Filed, of South Suburban College — Community College District No. 510 for the year ended
June 30, 2018. The College’s management is responsible for the Schedule of Enroliment Data and Other
Bases Upon Which Claims Were Filed in accordance with the guidelines of the lllinois Community College
Board’s Fiscal Management Manual. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the schedule based
upon our examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the standards applicable to attestation engagements
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the examination to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the Schedule of Enrollment Data and Other Bases Upon Which Claims Were Filed is in
accordance with the criteria, in all material respects. An examination involves performing procedures to
obtain evidence about the Schedule of Enrollment Data and Other Bases Upon Which Claims Were Filed.
The nature, timing, and extent of the procedures selected depend on our judgment, including an
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Schedule of Enroliment Data and Other Bases
Upon Which Claims Were Filed, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the evidence we obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the Schedule of Enroliment Data and Other Bases Upon Which Claims Were Filed referred
to above is presented in accordance with the guidelines of the lllinois Community College Board’s Fiscal
Management Manual in all material respects.

The supplementary information on pages 86 — 88 has not been subjected to the examination procedures
applied in the examination of the Schedule of Enrollment Data and Other Bases Upon Which Claims are
Filed, and accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees, management, and the
lllinois Community College Board and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than

these specified parties.
Cormre LY
Crowe LLP

Oak Brook, lllinois
October 25, 2018
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SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE

RESIDENCY POLICY (UNAUDITED)

Residency: Residency is based on location of the student's actual habitation at the time of registration,
associated with the intent to remain at that location. Classification of residency, as determined when fees
are paid, remains in effect for the entire term. Residency of students under 18 is that of the parent or
legal guardian, or as otherwise established by law.

Residency classifications are determined each term by the Admissions & Registration Center based on
information supplied by the student. If a student disagrees with residency classification, an appeal may be
made to the Director of Admissions and Records. By lllinois state law, a student may be requested to
supply proof of residency at any time.

Persons enrolling at South Suburban College are classified for residency purposes as:

e In-District Students — Persons who have established a permanent residence
within Community College District 510 and show evidence of continued intent to remain in the
District.

e Special Residency — Persons who live in Chicago and pursue specific programs; or are employed
in, or residents of, Lake County, Indiana. Call the Admissions & Registration Center at 708/596-
2000, ext. 2329 or 2490 for more information.

e Out-of-District Students — Persons living outside Community College District 510, but in the State
of lllinois.

e Out-of-state Students — Persons not living in lllinois.

e Foreign Students — Persons who are not United States citizens, have not filed a petition for
naturalization in lllinois, and do not hold permanent residency status. These students are charged
out-of-state tuition rates.

e Permanent Residency Status Students — Persons living in the district who are able to establish
their status by providing a copy of their alien resident card; and as such, are classified as in-
district and charged in-district tuition rates.

Note: Proof of District residency shall be based on evidence of ownership and/or occupancy of a dwelling
in the District by providing at least one of the following dated prior to registration: an lllinois drive’s license
or State I.D., an lllinois automobile license registration, an lllinois voter's registration card, a utility bill
(other than telephone) or other non-self-serving documentation.

86.



SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #510

SUMMARY OF ASSESSED VALUATIONS (UNAUDITED)

Most recent three years

Tax Levy Year Equalized Assessed Valuation
2017 $ 2,997,805,050
2016 2,985,543,407
2015 2,974,237,204
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SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NO. 510
BACKGROUND INFORMATION ON STATE GRANT ACTIVITY (UNAUDITED)
June 30, 2018

Unrestricted Grants

Basic Operating Grants: General operating funds provided to colleges based upon credit enroliment with
a small portion of the allocation based upon gross square footage of space at the college.

Equalization Grants: Grants provided to institutions with less than statewide average local tax dollars
available per full-time equivalent student.

Restricted Grants/Special Initiatives

Career and Technical Education-Program Improvement Grants: Grant funding recognizes that keeping
career and technical education programs current and reflective of the highest quality practices in the
workplace is necessary to prepare students to be successful in their chosen careers and to provide
employers with the well-trained workforce they require. The grant funds are dedicated to enhancing
instruction and academic support activities to strengthen and improve career and technical programs and
services.

Restricted Adult Education Grants/State

Public Assistance: Grant awarded to Adult Education and Family Literacy providers to pay for any fees,
books, and materials incurred in the program for students who are identified as recipients of public
assistance.

Performance: Grant awarded to Adult Education and Family Literacy providers based on performance
outcomes.

State Basic: Grant awarded to Adult Education and Family Literacy providers to establish special classes
for the instruction of persons of age 21 and over or persons under the age of 21 and not otherwise in
attendance in public school for the purpose of providing adults in the community, and other instruction as
may be necessary to increase their qualifications for employment or other means of self-support and their
ability to meet their responsibilities as citizens including courses of instruction regularly accepted for
graduation from elementary or high schools and for Americanization and General Education Development
Review classes included in this grant are funds for support services, such as student transportation and
child care facilities or provision.
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